
 

 

 

 

Meeting Leicestershire Schools' Forum 
 
Date/Time Thursday, 18 September 2014 at 2.00 pm 

 
Location Beaumanor Hall, Beaumanor Drive, Woodhouse, Leicestershire 
 
Officer to contact Karen Brown / Bryn Emerson (Tel. 0116 305 6432) (Tel. ) 
 
E-Mail  

 
Membership 

 
Tim Moralee (Chairman) 

 Ed McGovern Jean Lewis
 Bill Nash Michael Murphy
 Richard Spurr Suzanne Uprichard
 Alex Green Brian Myatt
 Sonia Singleton David Lloyd
 Heather Sewell Karen Allen
 Vacancy David Thomas
 John Bassford Sue Horn
 Jason Brooks Louisa Hallam
 Nigel Leigh Ian Sharpe
 Alison Deacon Chris Davies 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
Item   Report by  Marked 

 
1. Election of Chair and Vice Chair   

2. Apologies for absence/Substitutions.   

3. Membership Update   

4. Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 June 2014 and 5 
September 2014 (previously circulated) and matters 
arising. 

 4 

5. Oakfield Update  5 

6. 2013/14 School Balances  6 

7. Personal Budgets  7 

8. 2015/16 School Funding  8 

Due to the funding consultation not closing until 17th 
September these papers were only made live on the 
morning of the 18th September. 

9. Any other business.   



 

 

10. Date of next meeting.   

Next meetings (to be agreed): 
Thursday 4 December 2014 
Monday 23 February 2015 
Thursday 18 June 2015 
Monday 21 September 2015 
 
All above from 2.00 pm – 4.00 pm 

 
 



1 

 

Leicestershire Schools’ Forum 

Notes of the meeting held on Monday 16 June 2014, 2.00 pm at Beaumanor Hall 
 

Present 

Tim Moralee 
Brian Myatt 
Alex Green 
Sonia Singleton 
 

Secondary Academy Headteachers 

Suzanne Uprichard 
Richard Spurr 
Michael Murphy 
Bill Nash 
 

Secondary Academy Governors 

Jean Lewis 
 

Primary Academy Governors 

Heather Sewell 
David Lloyd 
Karen Allen 
 

Primary Maintained Headteachers 

David Thomas Primary Maintained Governor 

Jason Brooks Maintained Representative – Special 

Suzanne Uprichard PRU representative 

In attendance: 
Jenny Lawrence, CYPS Finance Business Partner 
Lesley Hagger, Director, Children and Families Service 
Gill Weston, Assistant Director, Education, Skills and Learning 
Chris Bristow, Interim Head of Strategy, Vulnerable Groups 
Harvinder Lidher, Education Funding Agency  
 
Observer 
Andy Winter, Business Manager, Wreake Valley Academy 
 

1. Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Ivan Ould, Nigel Leigh, Tony 
Gelsthorpe, Ian Sharpe, Alison Deacon, Julie Kennedy, Ed McGovern 
and Louisa Hallam. 
 

 

2. Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2014 were agreed 
subject to slight amendment to the membership category for those 
present. 
 

 

Agenda Item 43



2 

 

 

3. SEND and Personalisation 
 
Chris Bristow gave a verbal report on SEND Reform and 
Personalisation of budgets and circulated a paper on personal 
budgets.  Chis explained that from 1 September the ‘local offer’ would 
be in place.  Schools had a responsibility to publish their own SEND 
advice and information, Leicestershire was currently working with 
early years’ settings, schools and colleges to assist with this.  
Briefings were underway in schools and information would shortly be 
sent to schools. 
 
Chris added that the EHC Plan covers provision across education, 
health and care which was similar to a statement of special needs.  
Consultation with schools on providing top up funding was taking 
place and the SEN Support Plan would be used to trigger this process 
in place of a statutory assessment. 
 
The conversion of existing statements to an EHC plan was required by 
April 2018.  Chris explained the prioritisation of this process and had 
spoken with pathfinder colleagues regarding best advice to convene 
an annual review.  The statutory assessment would reduce from 26 
weeks to 20 weeks and bureaucracy cut down through SEN support 
plan being the basis for EHC plan and encouraged personal centred 
approach where plans are devised and co-produced with the parent 
by SENCos supported by practitioners. 
 
Chris added that there was more work to be carried out and joint 
commissioning work to be undertaken. 
 
Chris commented that the main discussion today was personalised 
budgets and referred to the previously circulated paper.  Chris outlined 
how an EHC plan can be requested but said that the resource from 
education was unknown but that the provision specified in the EHC 
plan could include funding from the school budget share and schools 
would be encouraged to personalise the support they provide.  The 
first £6,000 and additional top up funding that this is specified on the 
EHC plan. 
 
A Forum member asked what steps was the Local Authority taking 
about monitoring and evaluation of this new strategy and what role 
schools play.  Gill commented that the whole SEND project would be 
reviewed in the first term. 
 
Karen Allen asked about the personalised budgets changes in SEND 
and the deadline for turnaround of assessments being 20 weeks. She 
added that there seemed to be a growing trend in schools that already 
have statements and annual reviews taking 8 months to get a decision 
in order to get more provision.  She felt that the reason was a financial 

 

4



3 

 

one.  Chris stated that the delay was not due to financial reasons but 
to a staffing shortage for which the solution was being actioned.   
 
Chris explained that Leicester City was one of the pathfinder 
authorities and health colleagues are up to date with this agenda.  The 
key thing was joint commissioning to align the relevant services.  
There are new requirements for care plans and health care plans and 
Health need to put together a health care plan. 
 
David Lloyd expressed extreme concern regarding child mental health 
as they not receiving the basic support to get on that ladder to get the 
help they need for mental health issues.  He added that there was not 
enough support for mental health issues.   
 

Lesley Hagger stated that this had been identified for any pathway for 
CAMHS tiers 1 -4 and had at last been recognised in health.  Lesley 
added that this workstream was being looked at. 
 

4. 2013/14 Schools Budget Outturn 
 
Jenny Lawrence introduced ‘2013/14 Schools Budget Outturn’.  Jenny 
outlined that the Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve at the end of the 
financial year had nearly £1.4M sitting in an unallocated element. 
 
Jenny referred to the £2.2M current exposure to sponsored academy 
deficits for which £2.5M was set aside.  Forum noted this position.  
Jenny added that funding was being held for the age range changes in 
2015/16 in order to give a level of funding protection (£2.7M in 
2014/15 and 2015/16).  £1M had been set aside for demographic 
growth in primary places and other allocations for the continuation of 
the wind-down of Key Stage 3 provision and the Oakfield action plan. 
 
As part of the NNDR exercise across schools, maintained and 
academies would be fully funded for this.  However the EFA would not 
fund any of the increase that relates to pre-conversion and this would 
be something the Local Authority would need to fund and is an 
additional and unexpected call on funding. 
 
Schools’ Forum need to think about pupil number growth as this would 
become an issue over a number of years.  Jenny said that over the 
last two years a contingency had been set aside because of changes 
to the high level needs provision which had been able to provide 
funding for a number of issues, however this was not a sustainable 
long term solution to funding growth. 
 
Jenny referred to academy provision for deficits and challenging 
discussions were being entered into with academy sponsors regarding 
outstanding building work, health and safety work not carried out.    
 

 

5



4 

 

It was not appropriate to set a growth fund for 2015/16 but there was a 
need to link into place strategy. 
 
Jenny said that there was no proposal to allocate the contingency.  
This would be taken into account with the 2015/16 discussion. 
 

5. 2015/16 School Funding 
 
Jenny introduced ‘2015/16 School Funding’ which outlined the Local 
Authority’s response to the DfE’s consultation ‘Fairer Schools Funding 
in 2015-16.  The consultation came out in March with a closing date of 
30 April 2014.  Feedback is expected towards the end of June 2014. 
 
Richard Spurr commented that the published figures for the proposed 
allocation to Leicestershire were based on 2013/14 data which could 
mean the final figures could be significantly different. 
 
David Thomas asked Jenny about the scale back for Leicestershire of 
£6.3m. Jenny commented that the methodology of the calculation 
does not take into account that everything is funded through the 
schools’ formula.  The extra £202 per pupil was in the allocation of 
funding to the LA and would not allow for schools to be funded at an 
additional £202 per pupil.   
 
The Schools’ Forum noted the paper and acknowledged the analysis 
at this point for paper C. 
 

 

6. Simplification of Academy Funding 
 
Jenny introduced the paper ‘Simplification of Academy Funding’ which 
outlined the Local Authority’s response to the DfE’s consultation 
‘Simplifying the administration of academies funding’. 
 
Jenny outlined the current funding process for how academies 
received DSG funding and the exceptions to the funding i.e. early 
converters, studio or free schools.  The proposed changes would 
require the local authorities to treat studio and free schools and non-
recoupment academies equally in terms of funding. 
 
This would give these providers access to local authority centrally 
managed schools budgets which would include any funding 
established within local authorities to fund growth in pupil numbers 
 
Richard Spurr asked about pupil estimates and whether this was a 
financial burden.  Harvinder commented that there were lots of 
changes in Leicestershire and national move to the fair funding 
formula would have an impact at local level regarding age ranges.  He 
added it was down to the Local Authority to provide growth funding 
where it is appropriate to do so.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



5 

 

Sonia Singleton commented that there were more and more calls on 
DSG regarding sponsorship.  Some of the potential sponsors want 
problems fixing before they go into sponsorship.  Either the Local 
Authority fix the problems and they sponsor or the sponsors fix the 
problems and sponsor.  This point was mirrored by other Forum 
members. 
 
Discussion took place on the age range changes and potential 
building work which would require expansion in a few years time.  
Harvinder commented on the funding arrangements for 2015/16 
where you can vary the funding according to numbers.  
 
Lesley Hagger said she had a meeting on the 30 June with the Chief 
Executive and the EFA to discuss how we would work together to 
make best use of all our resources.  Lesley agreed to report back to 
the next Schools’ Forum. 
 
The Schools’ Forum noted the Local Authority’s response to the 
consultation. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LH 
 

7. 2015/16 School Funding Formula 
 
Jenny introduced ‘2015/16 School Funding’ which presents an 
analysis of the Leicestershire school funding formula and the process 
and timetable for the development and approval of the 2015/16 school 
funding formula. 
 
Jenny commented that this was difficult to plan as we wanted to make 
sure the resource was used in the most appropriate way to support an 
enhanced pupil outcome and get as much equity into the system. 
 
Jenny referred to Appendix 1 which was an analysis of the formula 
factors used by local authorities in their 2014/15 formulae issued by 
the EFA in February 2014.  This information gives a funding formula 
comparison for Leicestershire against statistical neighbours and the 
national position. 
 
Discussion had taken place with how best Leicestershire should use 
the additional funding for 2015/16 – appropriate to readdress the 
balance within the factors.  Work on modelling had been carried out.  
Approval for the 2014/15 age range changes had been received.  
Criticisms were level of projection too high which also happened in 
2014/15.  There would be a need to go back and review whether 80%  
remained appropriate for 2015/16 especially as schools could now 
plan for the change. 
 
Schools Forum supported the approach to be taken by the Authority in 
allocating additional funding across primary and secondary schools as 
well as special schools & units and early years providers. 

 

7



6 

 

Jenny proposed that a Task and Finish Group was established to 
ensure schools are fully engaged with the local authority in developing 
the overall approach to school funding in 2015/16 and the 
development of the funding formula.  The Group would assist the 
development of the proposals to provide challenge to the Local 
Authority.  A number of business managers had been approached to 
be part of the group and Jenny asked that Schools’ Forum nominate 
members to join the group. 
 
The first meeting had been arranged for 26 June 2014 at Beaumanor 
Hall to start looking at some the issues that are envisaged followed by 
meetings in July and August. 
 
Alex Green, Bill Nash and David Thomas agreed to be part of the 
Task and Finish Group. 
 
The Schools’ Forum supported the three recommendations of the 
report. 
 

8. 2014/15 membership 
 
Jenny reported that the membership was assessed on an annual 
basis and for 2014/15 no changes were required. 
 

 

9. Any Other Business 
 
There was no further business to discuss. 
 

 

10. Date of Next Meeting 
 
Thursday 18 September, 2.00 – 4.00 pm at Beaumanor Hall. 
 

 

 

8



1 

 

Leicestershire Schools’ Forum 

Notes of the meeting held on Friday 5 September 2014,  
10.00 am at Beaumanor Hall 

 
Present 

Tim Moralee 
Brian Myatt 
Alex Green 
Sonia Singleton 
 

Secondary Academy Headteachers 

Suzanne Uprichard 
Richard Spurr 
Michael Murphy 
Bill Nash 
 

Secondary Academy Governors 

Jean Lewis 
Ed McGovern 
 

Primary Academy Governors 

Heather Sewell 
Karen Allen 
Tony Gelsthorpe 
 

Primary Maintained Headteachers 

David Thomas Primary Maintained Governor 

Jason Brooks Maintained Representative – Special 

Suzanne Uprichard PRU representative 

Ian Sharpe CE Representative 

Louisa Hallam Early Years PVI provider 

Nigel Leigh Post 16 Provider 

Chris Davies RC Representative 

 
In attendance: 
Ivan Ould, Lead Member for Children and Family Services 
Jenny Lawrence, Children and Family Services Finance Business Partner 
Lesley Hagger, Director, Children and Family Services 
Gill Weston, Assistant Director, Education, Learning & Skills 
Chris Bristow, Interim Head of Strategy, Vulnerable Groups 
David Heyes, Children and Family Services 
 
Apologies 
Apologies were received from Sue Horn. 
 

9



2 

 

1. 2015/16 School Funding Consultation 
 
Tim Moralee welcomed everyone to the meeting.  The purpose of the 
meeting was to allow Schools’ Forum to consider the consultation 
before 18 September meeting. 
 
Jenny Lawrence reported challenging timescales for doing this as the 
final announcement by the DfE was during the summer holidays.  A 
Working Group was set up over the holidays working with and 
challenging the Local Authority.  Jenny thanked colleagues who came 
along and helped with that work. 
 
Schools’ Forum supported the Local Authority’s proposals on 16 June 
and that all educational providers should benefit from additional 
funding.  Used analysis of schools formula, when compared to 
statistical neighbours. 
 
There were 2 areas agreed to target: 

· Primary Age Weighted Pupil Unit – lower than other authorities 

· Prior attainment funding – level in Leicestershire in general was 
low 

 
Proposals are to increase Primary Age Weighted Pupil Unit by 7%, to 
double the amount of funding paid out by prior attainment.  Leaves 
estimated uplift to the Age Weighted Pupil Unit to all schools 1.5%.   
 
Needed to consider what we should do to realign the modelling for 
data changes.  We have in 2015/16 first time studio schools that need 
to be funded through the formula.  The modelling assumes this will be 
cash neutral. 
 
Also now have a lot of schools where rates demands have increased.  
All those changes need to be dealt with in fixed pot of funding. 
 
If data changes the funding will be adjusted by amending the general 
increase in AWPU of 1.5%. 
 
Proposals themselves only consider the distribution of the additional 
funding for Leicestershire of £20.5M – proposing no changes to the 
mechanism to fund age range changes for 2015/16.  Also it has been 
confirmed we do not need Secretary of State approval for funding age 
range protection 2015/16 – that will carry forward, but we do have to 
seek approval for the minimum funding guarantee. 
 
Question of what will happen in 2016/17 - we have no idea.  Will be a 
new Government potentially, new spending review, potentially 3 year 
settlement, potentially moving to national formula. 
 
 

 

10



3 

 

Mr Ould reported that F40 are in negotiations on monthly basis with 
DfE officials, assuming increase this year will become part of the 
budget, until in place they can’t be certain of that. 
 
Jenny Lawrence said the consultation paper had been set out in a 
format to allow schools to get greater understanding of how the 
schools funding system work.  We were very keen to try and make 
schools understand we are getting additional money in the pupil 
settlement, but as school level funding values differ for each element 
of the formula, it is not possible to fund all schools at additional £240 
per pupil. Calculation we did based on the funding needed to achieve 
a minimum increase of £240 per pupil in every school would be 
£131M as we have a number of schools so heavily protected by 
minimum funding guarantee. 
 
Tried to articulate very clearly, there is no requirement for that entire 
element to be delegated to schools given that the Local Authority 
holds budgets for things like redundancies, first stage of process is to 
take that funding out of funding settlement.  There is a requirement for 
Schools’ Forum to agree those amounts can be centrally retained. 
 
It is also important to note individual blocks of Schools Grant are not 
being ring fenced and currently £2M of the Schools Block is used to 
fund High Needs. 
 
Increased funding will find its way into maintained schools budgets 
from April 2015 and Academies September 2015. 
 
Proposals also allow 2 other increases.  3.6% base rate nursery 
education providers.  Also increase the amount of funding in special 
school pot by 3.6%.  The Working Group felt we should use average 
of the secondary school increase, which was 3.6%.  This was felt to 
be fairer than using the higher primary school increase. 
 
Not all schools will receive an increase in budget – 23 schools will 
remain on minimum funding guarantee and will not receive a cash 
increase in budget, but will not see a reduction in budget for 2015/16. 
 
Consultation questions – whether proposals we are consulting on 
seem a reasonable approach and do you agree with the Local 
Authority proposals.  Also allowed some free text so schools can raise 
any other issues. 
 
A very short consultation timescale – closes on 17 September to bring 
back to Schools’ Forum on 18 September.  A paper will be tabled on 
the day.  Cabinet will consider the proposals on 13 October to which 
must be submitted to the EFA by 31 October. 
 
 

11



4 

 

The purpose of the additional meeting is to engage Schools’ Forum in 
discussion, collect views and ensure that Forum members were using 
contacts and networks to ensure that schools are aware of and 
responding to the consultation. 
 
Information went out via Director’s newsletter on 1 September and on 
EIS, a reminder will go out to schools on 8 September.   
 
Questions raised: 
 
Richard Spurr – minimum funding guarantee of £3.3M drops 
considerably to £0.7M – big deal for individual schools, is that mostly 
down to the extra money? 
 
Jenny Lawrence responded – it is all down to the extra money, 
modelling we have done on current year data.  Without the additional 
money schools could be losing 1.5% per pupil.  Those 23 schools will 
not see decrease per pupil. 
 
Tony Gelsthorpe supported the proposal – actually principled, clear, 
transparent and can understand them.  Quite a few references to age 
range changes and the mechanism. 
 
Tony Gelsthorpe asked if we knew what the cost of protection for age 
range changes was.  Our latest estimate for 2015/16 is £1.9M. This 
amount is covered by the funds set aside for protection in the 
Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve. 

The meeting concluded at 10.30am. 
 

2. Any Other Business 
 
There was no further business to discuss. 
 

 

3. Date of Next Meeting 
 
Thursday 18 September, 2.00 – 4.00 pm at Beaumanor Hall. 
Apologies received from: Mr Ould and Tim Moralee. 
Tony Gelsthorpe to chair the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

12



1 
 

 
 

SCHOOLS FORUM 
 

 

18 September 2014 
 

Oakfield Short Stay School Funding 
 

Content Applicable to; School Phase; 

Maintained Primary and 
Secondary Schools 

X Pre School  

Academies X Foundation Stage  

PVI Settings  Primary X 

Special Schools / 
Academies 

X Secondary  

Local Authority X Post 16  

  High Needs X 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

Content Requires; By; 

Noting X Maintained Primary School 
Members 

X 

Decision X Maintained Secondary 
School Members 

 

  Maintained Special School 
Members 

 

  Academy Members X 

  All Schools Forum  

 
 

1. This report presents an analysis of the funding streams required for Oakfield Short 
Stay School and the Proposed Outreach Services for Leicestershire. 

 
 
Recommendations 
 

2. That the centrally commissioned arrangement funding arrangement be carried 
forward for 2014-15. 

3. That Schools Forum notes the use DSG reserves to fund an additional teacher for 
outreach work from January - April 2015 and administrative support from 
September 2014 to April 2015 at a cost of £31,090. 

 

Agenda Item 513



2 
 

Introduction 
 
4. The school funding system envisages commissioning arrangements for PRU’s 

whereby schools are the commissioners for dual registered places and the local 
authority for permanent exclusions. This model is not in place in Leicestershire, 
Schools Forum has previously agreed that all places at Oakfield School would be 
centrally commissioned by the Local Authority from DSG. A continuation of this 
arrangement is sought. 

 
5. New arrangements have been put in place with regard to access to Oakfield and to 

develop school-to-school support for pupils experiencing behaviour difficulties to 
build capacity and expertise across Leicestershire. These arrangements have initial 
set-up costs for which funding is being sought. 

 

Background 

6. In May 2014, Oakfield Short Stay School, Leicestershire’s Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) 
for pupils aged 5-11 was judged by Ofsted to be a good school in all aspects having 
previously been in special measures. From 28th April the school has been a primary 
only facility. The school caters for pupils at risk of or who have been permanently 
excluded. 

The Core Oakfield Budget 

7. The 2013-14 Oakfield delegated budget was for £1.56m for 51 places. This was split 
on a weighted basis to reflect the different per pupil funding rates within the 
Leicestershire school funding formula for primary and KS3 pupil funding. The place 
and funding arrangements were for 30 primary places totalling £782,347; and for 
KS3, 21 places totalling £777,653. The latter amount was partially devolved to 
secondary behaviour partnerships from Easter 2014 and fully devolved from 1 
September 2014. 

8. During the school year 2103-14, Oakfield School was subject to a staffing reduction 
action plan which effected reductions in the overall staffing budget and created 
savings in running costs with canteen staff being replaced by the County Schools 
Meals Service, and the loss of one primary and three secondary teachers. In 
addition, Teaching Assistant and administrative posts were reduced in line with 
reduced pupil numbers. Oakfield School as a primary provision, has implemented 
measures to reduce its running costs; mothballing buildings in line with LCC 
procedures to safeguard the fabric and safety of the buildings and re-organising 
classrooms to establish a more effective and efficient provision. 

9. School Funding reform introduced in April 2013, required that all direct state-funded 
PRUs received base funding of £8,000 per place, topped up by funding from the 
commissioning LA or school for each pupil admitted to the provision with the total 
cost of a KS1/2 place being £26,078. The top-up fee for schools wishing a placement 
at Oakfield is therefore £18,078 per year per pupil. Nationally there is concern about 
this model and the financial instability it introduces. Firstly, as the cost is in 
considerable excess of the pupil funding rate schools receive schools would be 
unlikely to pay this amount. Secondly, such a funding arrangement does not provide 
a stable structure on which the school can budget from year to year, the £8,000 per 
pupil place being insufficient to provide the stability required to maintain high-quality 
core functions of the school. The Department for Education (DfE) under the Fairer 

14



3 
 

Funding proposals for 2015/16 have increased the place fee to £10,000 which will 
reduce the top up funding to £16,078 

10. Schools Forum, 20 February 2013 agreed funding to Oakfield School as a result of 
the School Funding Reform when considering the 2013/14 Schools Budget and that 
the Local Authority would act as the commissioner for the  places at Oakfield School 
on behalf of all schools, the full cost of the Oakfield provision being sourced from the 
DSG. It is recommended that this centrally commissioned arrangement be continued 
until such point the DfE model becomes viable. 

 

i) Access to Oakfield School 

11. The Locality Support Team budget was delegated in April 2013 at a rate of £6.43 per 
primary pupil to help schools meet the needs of their pupils with social, emotional 
and behaviour difficulties. The service continued until August 31st 2013 funded by the 
local authority. Over the last year the number of referrals and requests to Oakfield 
has been rising and the school was almost full at the end of the summer term 2014.  
18 pupils were on roll at the start of September 2014 with a further 10 waiting places 
who will have their induction period in early September; this is compared to 19 at the 
start of September 2013 and 13 in September 2012. This may be due, in part, to the 
disestablishment of locality support teams which happened in July 2013 when 
funding was delegated to schools. Although some schools, including groups of 
schools, have taken the opportunity to begin to build local capacity and expertise, 
others have expressed concern that they neither have the expertise nor know where 
to access support when they have a child with challenging behaviour. Where schools 
are accessing support, for example, through Education Psychology Service, there is 
limited capacity to provide the volume of universal support that is required.     

12. In November 2013 the local authority agreed to meet with Leicestershire Primary 
Headteachers Group, Oakfield school management committee and ex-chairs of 
primary behaviour partnerships. The purpose of these meetings was to gather views 
in order that a number of options can be considered which will provide a structured 
framework that ensures that schools are supported to deal with challenging pupils 
through early identification and intervention.    The three key areas which schools 
identified as critical to improving this type of provision are: 

· Ensuring a fair admissions process: since the disbanding of local partnerships, the 
gate-keeping process has been removed. 

· Sharing information, advice and guidance: schools requested that local 
partnerships are established where there is an opportunity to share issues, access 
expertise, signposting and guidance which would reduce the demand for places at 
Oakfield.  

· Access to expertise: Oakfield staff has a wealth of expertise and experience which 
could support schools in building local capacity and expertise. Developing outreach 
and a training programme which is part of a wider departmental offer to schools 
would support the principles of a self-improving school system. 
 

13. A two-fold approach has been developed through this consultation. Firstly, a Primary 
Behaviour Forum is being set up across Leicestershire which will enable schools to 
discuss specific cases causing concern. It is proposed that the forum will be held 
around the County and become aligned to the secondary partnership areas and 
Early Help structures. A vital part of this structure is the school-to-school support that 
will be facilitated at these meetings. Experienced and current practitioners from 

15



4 
 

Oakfield will attend these meetings offering further advice and guidance. To enable 
this to happen, job descriptions at Oakfield will be re-negotiated and further capacity 
in the system will be required to backfill the time spent on outreach work. In addition, 
Oakfield will host a “One –Stop Shop” each month enabling schools to bring cases to 
Oakfield where a placement is being considered.  

 
14. It should be noted that secondary behaviour partnership Chairs have also indicated 

that they would support any developments in localities for primary schools. 
Discussions are on-going with headteachers about the development of early help 
locality support. Any long term development needs to take account of this and the 
wider departmental and multi-agency offer.  

15. The Primary Behaviour Forum and the One-Stop Shop will require co-ordination and 
administrative support ensuring that the cases brought in a timely manner with 
appropriate supporting information distributed in advance of the meetings. The 
system will be trialled over the remainder of the academic year so that primary 
schools can evaluate the strategy and confirm with the Local Authority that this is a 
viable method of support for pupils with social, emotional and behaviour difficulties. 
The plan from April 2015 will require that full-cost recovery is in place for both the 
One-Stop Shop and the Primary Behaviour Forum with schools contributing for that 
service. The detail of this structure will need to be worked up with schools via the 
Primary Partnership Consultation Steering Group once the trial has been evaluated. 

 
Resource Implications 

As an interim measure, it is recommended that DSG reserves are used to fund the 
additional teacher from January - April 2015 and administrative support from September 
2014 to April 2015 at a cost of £31,100 

 
It is intended that if this model proves successful, a traded model will be developed in 
consultation with schools with schools bearing the cost. 
 
 
Equal Opportunity Issues 
 
A significant number of pupils accessing provision at Oakfield leave to move on to 
specialist provision and have a statement of educational need. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Schools Forum, 20 February 2013 – 2013/14 Schools Budget. 
 
Funding, staffing and legislation for pupil referral units (PRUs) from April 2013. 
Department for Education, available at www.education.gov.uk. 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Chris Connearn 
Interim Head of Strategy Education Quality and Vulnerable Groups. 
Telephone: 0116 305 6138. Email: Chris.connearn@leics.gov.uk 

16



 
 
 

SCHOOLS FORUM 
 

2013/14 School Balances 

 

18 September 2014 
 
    

Content Applicable to; School Phase; 

Maintained Primary and 
Secondary Schools 

X Pre School  

Academies  Foundation Stage X 

PVI Settings  Primary X 

Special Schools / 
Academies 

X Secondary X 

Local Authority X Post 16  

  High Needs  

 
Purpose of Report 
 

Content Requires; By; 

Noting X Maintained Primary School 
Members 

X 

Decision  Maintained Secondary 
School Members 

X 

  Maintained Special School 
Members 

X 

  Academy Members  

  All Schools Forum  

 
‘X’ denotes what actions are required and the groups of members 
that are able enact the recommendations within the report. 
 
Where information is targeted at a particular group of Schools 
Forum it does not preclude other members from participating in 
debate. 

 
1. This report sets out the position in regard to school balances for all schools that 

were maintained by the local authority on March 31 2013 and the 2013/14 financial 
year. 

 
Recommendation 

Agenda Item 617



2. That Schools Forum note the position on the 2013/14 school balances for local 
authority maintained schools.  

 
Introduction 
3. This report presents the annual position on school balances, it provides that 

information at individual school level. 
 

Background 

4. School balances are only able to be formally measured by the local authority at the 
closure of the financial year. Balances are taken from the Consistent Financial 
Reporting return submitted by individual schools to the local authority. 

5. Reporting locally is the first stage of publication of school balance information. Once 
all school returns are consolidated that information is submitted to the Department for 
Education (DfE) who subsequently publish that information on a national basis at 
both local authority and individual school level. 

6. Whilst this report presents the position for maintained schools, information on the 
financial position of academies is not published in the same manner. The DfE publish 
the individual statutory financial statements for academies, the information is difficult 
to locate, does not allow an easy view on unspent funds and is not brought together 
in a manner in which it would be possible to ascertain the overall financial 
performance of academies in a particular location. 

7. Whilst Schools Forum agreed at its meeting on June 20 2013 to remove the 
mechanism for controlling school revenue balances, national controls remain on 
Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) which remains limited to use over three years. 

 

2013/14 School Balances 

8. The analysis of school balances is shown in Appendix 1. The figures include all 
schools that were local authority maintained schools for the full financial year i.e. 
between April 1 2012 and March 31st 2014 except those converting to academy 
status on 1st April, for these schools although balances remain with the local 
authority on March 31st and are included in the balances reported nationally by the 
Department for Education (DfE) they have been excluded from the report. Schools 
that have converted to academies up between April and July are denoted on the 
report. 

9. Given the exclusion of balances for converted academies during 2013/14 the 
2012/13 balances reported here will not match those reported at the end of 2012/13 
but the comparison between years is valid as it includes schools maintained for the 
full financial year. 

10. The total level of all school balances at 31st March 2014 was £8.3m which is an 
increase of £1.6m (23%) from the comparative 2012/13 position. The gross revenue 
position is an increase of £2.8m (41%). 

13. Overall % of primary schools have balances over 3%, the position in secondary 
schools shows % in that position; 

  Primary Secondary Special 

18



Deficit 9 (6%) 5 (72%) 1 (33%) 

Surplus 0% - 1% 2 (1%)   

Surplus 1.1% - 3% 21 (14%) 1 (14%)  

Surplus 3.1% - 5% 19 (13%) 1 (14%)  

Surplus 5.1% - 8% 33 (22%)  2 (67%) 

Surplus 8.1% + 67 (44%)   

Total 151 7 3 

14. Care needs to be taken when analysing school balances as they show a position at a 
single point in time. Whilst it is the responsibility of the governing body to set a school 
budget, the finance team will continue to analyse the budget intention returns from 
schools to identify whether any of the schools currently reporting a surplus expect to 
move to deficit and if necessary that those schools are operating with an agreed 
deficit recovery plan. As discussed at previous the finance service has limited tools to 
undertake this type of exercise and is dependent upon schools sharing accurate 
information. Once this exercise is completed the finance service is totally dependent 
upon schools to raise concerns over their financial position if unplanned events 
occur. 

15. The finance service works pro-actively with schools in, or at risk of, a deficit budget 
and schools must gain local authority approval for any deficit and within that process 
must identify the actions to be taken to revert the school to a balanced budget.  

  

Balance Control Mechanism 

16. Schools Forum removed the mechanism for controlling schools balances when 
approving The Scheme for Financing Schools at its meeting on 20 June 2013. Had 
the scheme remained in place at 8% for primary schools, funding totalling £2.5m 
would have been reclaimed from 77 schools. Had the limit been 10% £1.5m would 
have been reclaimed from 53 primaries. It is unclear whether the position would have 
been different had a mechanism been in place. By its very application a control 
scheme changes school behaviour for example if a school was likely to be in breach 
of the limit they could purchase supplies and equipment during March instead of in 
April. 

17. The local authority has discussed the issue of school balances with the Schools 
Forum annually. A reduction in balances occurred between 2011/12 and 2012/13 
which has been the only recent overall reduction. The rise in revenue balances held 
by primary schools is alarming and at 41.7% significant. The school budget is made 
available to meet the education needs for the pupils on roll in that year. The local 
authority will align school performance data and the attainment gap at each school 
with excessive balances, LEEP will receive this information and consider any actions 
that may be necessary where a primary school may have excessive balances and 
under performance. 

18. The analysis of the 2014/15 Leicestershire school funding formula identified that the 
pupil led funding within primary schools was lower than similar authorities yet 100 

19



(66%) of schools had revenue balances in excess of 5% at 31st March. Primary 
schools have declared that £8.1m of revenue was uncommitted at year end, it is 
uncertain how much of this funding has been used by those schools to support 
2014/15 budgets, the local authority will ask a sample of schools to declare how 
much of their carry forward being used for this purpose. It is imperative that schools 
use the funding they have in their budgets is to support the pupils on roll for that year 
and that the additional funding that Leicestershire schools will receive in 2015/16 is 
used to deliver an effective education for the children that generate  

 

Resource Implications 
19. Resource implications are included throughout this report. However the unused 

resources sitting at individual school level give rise for concern, especially given the 
overall financial schools allocation to Leicestershire and the recognition for 2015/16 
that Leicestershire and its schools are one of the least fair funded authority and will 
receive additional funding. The focus of the allocation of the additional funding is the 
primary Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) where analysis of local authority funding 
formula allocations show primary schools to be lower funded than those in similar 
authorities. An increase in revenue balances and this position are difficult to 
reconcile. 

 
Equal Opportunity Issues 
20. Non arising directly from this report 
 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Officer to Contact 
Jenny Lawrence 
Finance Business Partner – Children and Family Services 
Email; jenny.lawrence@leics.gov.uk 
Tel: 01163056401 
 

20



2013/14 School Balances

B01 

Committed 

Revenue 

Balance

B02 

Uncommitted 

Revenue 

Balance

B03 

Devolved 

Capital 

Balance

B05 Other 

Capital 

Balance

B06 

Community 

Focused 

Extended 

School 

Total 

Balance

Total 

Revenue 

Balance

Surpluses Deficits Total 

Revenue 

Balance 

%

B01 

Committed 

Revenue 

Balance

B02 

Uncommitted 

Revenue 

Balance

B03 

Devolved 

Capital 

Balance

B05 Other 

Capital 

Balance

B06 

Community 

Focused 

Extended 

School 

Total 

Revenue 

Balance

Total 

Balance

Primary Schools 18

Sherard Primary School & Community Centre 0 -246,996 0 0 0 -246,996 -246,996 0 -246,996 -22.6% 0 -228,194 0 0 0 -228,194 -228,194

Christ Church and St Peter’s Church of England Primary School -5,193 -168,001 600 1,046 14,357 -157,192 -158,838 0 -158,838 -10.8% -168,001 0 6,297 0 14,357 -168,001 -147,347

Swannington Church of England Primary School 0 -25,949 180 0 0 -25,769 -25,949 0 -25,949 -6.7% 0 -12,990 5,723 0 0 -12,990 -7,267

Elizabeth Woodville Primary School 0 -21,474 0 1,228 0 -20,245 -21,474 0 -21,474 -2.9% 0 -53,359 0 0 0 -53,359 -53,359

Harby Church of England Primary School 0 -10,556 10,861 0 0 305 -10,556 0 -10,556 -2.6% 0 17,635 9,405 0 0 17,635 27,041

Hallbrook Primary School, Broughton Astley 0 -17,730 12,715 0 0 -5,015 -17,730 0 -17,730 -2.0% 0 44,361 38,639 0 0 44,361 83,000

Greenfield Primary School 0 -25,112 0 0 0 -25,112 -25,112 0 -25,112 -1.7% 0 3,903 133 0 0 3,903 4,037

Belvoirdale Community Primary School 0 -21,374 4,319 8,416 0 -8,639 -21,374 0 -21,374 -1.7% 0 2,662 4,319 5,851 0 2,662 12,832

Barlestone Church of England Primary School 0 -8,393 19,061 -15,508 0 -4,840 -8,393 0 -8,393 -1.4% 5,708 20,470 19,061 0 0 26,178 45,239

Richmond Primary School 0 1,429 6,080 -2,960 0 4,550 1,429 1,429 0 0.1% -25,945 0 6,080 771 0 -25,945 -19,094

Redmile Church of England Primary School 0 674 0 0 0 674 674 674 0 0.2% 0 35,117 3,134 0 0 35,117 38,251

Houghton on the Hill Church of England Primary School 6,419 0 8,782 0 0 15,201 6,419 6,419 0 1.0% 10,634 0 8,785 0 0 10,634 19,419

Snarestone Church of England Primary School 0 3,627 0 0 0 3,627 3,627 3,627 0 1.1% 0 24,192 0 0 0 24,192 24,192

Swithland St Leonard’s Church of England Primary School 0 4,724 40,016 -27,059 0 17,681 4,724 4,724 0 1.1% 0 -8,467 27,059 0 0 -8,467 18,592

Packington Church of England Primary School 0 6,026 6,489 0 0 12,515 6,026 6,026 0 1.4% 0 17,861 5,016 0 0 17,861 22,877

St Andrew’s Church of England Primary School, North Kilworth 0 5,766 0 0 55,494 61,260 61,260 61,260 0 1.4% 0 17,594 0 0 0 17,594 17,594

Ab Kettleby Community Primary School 0 4,092 0 0 0 4,092 4,092 4,092 0 1.4% 0 14,945 0 0 0 14,945 14,945

Arnesby Church of England Primary School 4,992 -497 0 0 0 4,495 4,495 4,495 0 1.5% 0 28,640 1,756 3,190 0 28,640 33,586

Badgerbrook Primary School 706 22,176 14,017 0 0 36,899 22,882 22,882 0 1.7% 0 76,453 16,245 0 0 76,453 92,699

Blaby Thistly Meadow Primary School 15,064 508 0 0 0 15,572 15,572 15,572 0 1.9% 0 22,619 0 0 0 22,619 22,619

Brownlow School 0 35,395 0 0 -5,873 29,521 29,521 29,521 0 1.9% 36,734 59,073 0 0 0 95,807 95,807

Saint Peter’s Catholic Primary School, Hinckley 0 14,737 0 0 0 14,737 14,737 14,737 0 1.9% 0 3,720 0 0 0 3,720 3,720

Whitwick, St John The Baptist Church of England Primary School 5,578 20,134 374 0 0 26,087 25,712 25,712 0 2.0% 23,385 28,480 6,399 0 0 51,865 58,264

Kilby St. Mary’s Church of England Primary School 1,096 8,593 0 0 0 9,688 9,689 9,689 0 2.2% 0 34,774 0 0 0 34,774 34,774

Burton on the Wolds Primary School 0 13,995 0 1 0 13,996 13,995 13,995 0 2.3% 0 10,596 5,012 3,123 0 10,596 18,731

Albert Village Community Primary School 0 16,866 4,108 0 0 20,974 16,866 16,866 0 2.3% 0 913 5,431 0 0 913 6,344

Lubenham, All Saints Church of England Primary School 0 8,987 10,120 0 0 19,107 8,987 8,987 0 2.4% 3,972 9,364 8,795 3,934 0 13,336 26,065

Market Harborough Church of England Primary School 5,549 28,748 10,372 3,940 0 48,610 34,297 34,297 0 2.6% 8,797 6,322 10,372 7,359 0 15,118 32,849

St Margaret’s Church of England Primary School 0 19,968 0 0 0 19,968 19,968 19,968 0 2.9% 0 31,687 0 0 0 31,687 31,687

St Denys Church of England Infant School, Ibstock 0 23,040 13,815 12,484 0 49,339 23,040 23,040 0 2.9% 0 21,674 21,607 31,838 0 21,674 75,119

Ibstock Junior School and Special Unit 0 23,418 0 0 0 23,418 23,418 23,418 0 3.0% 0 6,697 0 0 0 6,697 6,697

Ravenhurst Primary School 2,227 61,227 0 0 0 63,454 63,454 63,454 0 3.0% 0 41,266 0 0 0 41,266 41,266

Great Glen St Cuthbert's Church of England Primary School 4,937 18,045 6 0 0 22,987 22,982 22,982 0 3.2% 0 13,060 6 0 0 13,060 13,066

Sherrier Church of England Primary School 0 42,249 0 515 0 42,764 42,249 42,249 0 3.2% 0 45,240 0 0 0 45,240 45,240

Newcroft Primary School 0 32,638 534 0 0 33,173 32,638 32,638 0 3.3% 23,272 31,803 4,507 0 0 55,075 59,582

Saint Charles’s Catholic Primary School, Measham 0 17,138 0 0 0 17,138 17,138 17,138 0 3.3% 0 27,712 0 0 0 27,712 27,712

Swinford Church of England Primary School 0 12,958 0 0 0 12,958 12,958 12,958 0 3.4% 0 10,898 0 0 0 10,898 10,898

Waltham on the Wolds Church of England Primary School 0 15,510 0 0 10,945 26,455 26,455 26,455 0 3.4% 0 -1,321 0 0 7,725 -1,321 6,404

Highgate Community Primary School 0 25,916 2,699 0 0 28,615 25,916 25,916 0 3.7% 0 7,725 0 0 0 7,725 7,725

Thurnby, St Luke’s Church of England Primary School 11,650 17,159 12,574 0 0 41,383 28,809 28,809 0 3.8% 0 51,313 6,268 0 0 51,313 57,581

Warren Hills Community Primary School 780 46,904 15,863 0 0 63,546 47,684 47,684 0 4.2% 0 49,457 19,380 0 0 49,457 68,837

Foxton Primary School 3,100 16,613 2,075 0 0 21,789 19,714 19,714 0 4.3% 0 10,893 8,130 0 0 10,893 19,023

Little Bowden School 0 51,364 4,623 -7,869 0 48,118 51,364 51,364 0 4.4% 0 13,182 8,031 -1,105 0 13,182 20,108

Long Whatton Church of England Primary School 6,409 8,279 0 0 0 14,688 14,688 14,688 0 4.5% 0 7,709 7,428 0 0 7,709 15,137

Orchard Church of England Primary School, Broughton Astley 0 33,339 407 0 0 33,746 33,339 33,339 0 4.6% 2,784 26,965 9,889 0 0 29,749 39,638

Sir John Moore Church of England Primary School 0 29,189 0 0 0 29,189 29,189 29,189 0 4.7% 0 26,330 0 0 0 26,330 26,330

St Botolph’s Church of England Primary School 0 39,133 12,906 0 0 52,039 39,133 39,133 0 4.8% 0 60,135 11,800 0 0 60,135 71,934

Old Mill Primary School, Broughton Astley 5,329 57,512 2,928 0 0 65,769 62,841 62,841 0 4.8% 1,362 40,586 7,545 0 0 41,948 49,493

Croft Church of England Primary School 0 24,252 0 16,058 5,921 46,231 30,173 30,173 0 4.9% 1,453 -13,733 21,428 0 -367 -12,280 8,781

All Saints Church of England Primary School, Sapcote 0 29,962 0 0 0 29,962 29,962 29,962 0 5.0% 0 12,098 0 91 0 12,098 12,188

Sheepy Magna Church of England Primary School 0 24,302 0 0 0 24,302 24,302 24,302 0 5.0% 0 31,616 5,001 -5,029 0 31,616 31,588

Fleckney Church of England Primary School 0 68,064 0 0 0 68,064 68,064 68,064 0 5.5% 0 51,154 0 0 0 51,154 51,154

Woolden Hill Community Primary School 0 38,035 6,617 0 0 44,652 38,035 38,035 0 5.8% 0 19,248 3,198 0 0 19,248 22,446

Ashby de la Zouch Church of England Primary School 0 61,891 2,071 0 0 63,962 61,891 61,891 0 5.8% 0 78,631 16,787 0 0 78,631 95,418

Bringhurst Primary School 0 32,830 0 0 0 32,830 32,830 32,830 0 5.9% 0 26,186 3,238 -2,017 0 26,186 27,407

Ellistown Community Primary School 0 52,454 0 6,554 0 59,008 52,454 52,454 0 5.9% 0 75,978 0 0 0 75,978 75,978

Claybrooke Primary School 0 24,418 1,770 0 0 26,188 24,418 24,418 0 6.0% 0 5,053 0 0 0 5,053 5,053

Saint Francis Catholic Primary School, Melton Mowbray 8,933 46,756 0 0 0 55,689 55,689 55,689 0 6.1% 0 57,780 0 0 0 57,780 57,780

Willesley Primary School 0 71,196 0 0 0 71,196 71,196 71,196 0 6.2% 0 65,172 12,000 0 0 65,172 77,171

Buckminster Primary School 0 26,247 10,082 0 0 36,329 26,247 26,247 0 6.3% 0 15,348 7,984 0 0 15,348 23,332

Cossington Church of England Primary School 9,579 18,958 19,407 0 0 47,944 28,537 28,537 0 6.4% 0 20,095 16,954 0 0 20,095 37,049

Richard Hill Church of England Primary School 4,693 33,010 0 0 0 37,703 37,703 37,703 0 6.5% 0 21,183 0 0 0 21,183 21,183

Donisthorpe Primary School 0 57,680 0 0 0 57,680 57,680 57,680 0 6.5% 0 54,649 438 0 0 54,649 55,087

Belton Church of England Primary School 0 26,055 0 0 0 26,055 26,055 26,055 0 6.6% 0 19,700 1,144 0 0 19,700 20,844

Hemington Primary School 2,168 18,555 0 0 0 20,723 20,723 20,723 0 6.8% 0 28,389 96 0 0 28,389 28,484

Heather Primary School 0 35,129 4,670 0 0 39,799 35,129 35,129 0 7.0% 1,000 40,063 16,707 0 0 41,063 57,770

Robert Bakewell Primary School and Community Centre 0 68,039 0 4,972 0 73,011 68,039 68,039 0 7.2% 0 52,185 5,085 0 0 52,185 57,270

Desford Community Primary School 6,500 63,023 0 0 0 69,523 69,523 69,523 0 7.3% 0 75,040 0 1,879 -8,043 75,040 68,877

2012/13 School Balances

Paper D Appendix 1 - 2013-14 School Balances.xls Page 1

2
1



2013/14 School Balances

B01 

Committed 

Revenue 

Balance

B02 

Uncommitted 

Revenue 

Balance

B03 

Devolved 

Capital 

Balance

B05 Other 

Capital 

Balance

B06 

Community 

Focused 

Extended 

School 

Total 

Balance

Total 

Revenue 

Balance

Surpluses Deficits Total 

Revenue 

Balance 

%

B01 

Committed 

Revenue 

Balance

B02 

Uncommitted 

Revenue 

Balance

B03 

Devolved 

Capital 

Balance

B05 Other 

Capital 

Balance

B06 

Community 

Focused 

Extended 

School 

Total 

Revenue 

Balance

Total 

Balance

2012/13 School Balances

John Wycliffe Primary School 0 72,282 5,857 0 0 78,139 72,282 72,282 0 7.3% 0 42,119 1,403 -1 0 42,119 43,521

St Peter’s Church of England Primary School, Whetstone 0 66,725 0 0 0 66,725 66,725 66,725 0 7.4% 0 78,422 0 0 -70 78,422 78,352

St Bartholomew’s Church of England Primary School 7,233 80,749 626 0 0 88,608 87,982 87,982 0 7.4% 3,263 43,261 878 0 0 46,524 47,402

Hugglescote Community Primary School 0 120,952 10,865 0 0 131,817 120,952 120,952 0 7.4% 3,169 123,291 12,627 0 0 126,460 139,087

Martinshaw Primary School, Groby 0 54,453 0 2,320 0 56,773 54,453 54,453 0 7.4% 0 13,577 0 0 0 13,577 13,577

Seagrave Village Primary School 0 32,000 14,532 0 0 46,532 32,000 32,000 0 7.4% 31,542 28,611 30,079 0 0 60,153 90,232

Fernvale Primary School 0 49,909 8,090 29,330 0 87,329 49,909 49,909 0 7.4% 0 40,335 9,525 45,995 0 40,335 95,855

Wymeswold Church of England Primary School 0 33,750 0 0 0 33,750 33,750 33,750 0 7.5% 0 23,749 44,717 0 0 23,749 68,466

Hathern Church of England Primary School 3,400 39,075 2,569 0 0 45,044 42,475 42,475 0 7.5% 2,450 18,232 2,239 0 0 20,682 22,921

Riverside Community Primary School 0 115,077 13,201 0 0 128,278 115,077 115,077 0 7.6% 42,633 12,855 2,407 9,122 0 55,488 67,017

Woodstone Primary School 0 62,767 1,966 0 0 64,733 62,767 62,767 0 7.7% 0 68,913 7,590 0 0 68,913 76,503

New Swannington Primary School 0 59,506 11,708 0 0 71,214 59,506 59,506 0 7.7% 0 39,924 11,956 0 0 39,924 51,880

Kingsway Primary School 0 96,775 7,185 0 0 103,960 96,775 96,775 0 7.8% 0 92,853 29,789 -27,242 0 92,853 95,400

Highcliffe Primary School and Community Centre 0 111,323 14,269 0 0 125,592 111,323 111,323 0 7.9% 0 136,993 18,978 0 0 136,993 155,971

Bishop Ellis Catholic Primary School, Thurmaston 0 92,677 0 0 0 92,677 92,677 92,677 0 8.0% 0 65,265 0 0 0 65,265 65,265

Billesdon Parochial Primary School 0 30,610 4,492 0 0 35,102 30,610 30,610 0 8.0% 0 37,414 10,341 0 0 37,414 47,755

Sharnford Church of England Primary School 0 28,177 43 0 0 28,220 28,177 28,177 0 8.2% 0 2,989 1,768 -1,768 0 2,989 2,989

Oxley Primary School, Shepshed 0 60,947 11,549 1 0 72,497 60,947 60,947 0 8.3% 0 67,982 5,310 0 0 67,982 73,292

Ullesthorpe Church of England Primary School 3,872 36,940 10 0 0 40,822 40,812 40,812 0 8.4% 0 43,326 55 0 0 43,326 43,381

St Peter’s Church of England Primary School, Wymondham 0 26,649 0 0 0 26,649 26,649 26,649 0 8.6% 0 4,691 0 0 0 4,691 4,691

Loughborough Church of England Primary School 0 79,693 0 0 0 79,693 79,693 79,693 0 8.7% 0 158,818 0 -19,147 0 158,818 139,671

Sketchley Hill Primary School 0 121,668 11,851 0 0 133,518 121,668 121,668 0 8.7% 0 134,218 25,684 0 0 134,218 159,901

Congerstone Primary School 0 53,942 0 0 0 53,942 53,942 53,942 0 8.9% 0 29,112 11,111 0 0 29,112 40,223

Booth Wood Primary School 0 78,652 0 2,383 0 81,035 78,652 78,652 0 8.9% 0 37,057 0 0 0 37,057 37,057

Westfield Infant School, Hinckley 9,502 97,886 0 0 0 107,388 107,388 107,388 0 9.0% 0 96,518 0 0 0 96,518 96,518

Thythorn Field Community Primary School 0 57,732 7,808 0 0 65,540 57,732 57,732 0 9.0% 0 44,768 13,282 0 0 44,768 58,050

Blackfordby, St Margaret’s Church of England Primary School 0 34,546 0 0 0 34,546 34,546 34,546 0 9.0% 3,679 13,739 0 0 0 17,418 17,418

Thorpe Acre Junior School 0 62,683 21,649 -2,518 0 81,815 62,683 62,683 0 9.1% 0 65,339 21,649 0 0 65,339 86,988

Saint Peter’s Catholic Primary School, Earl Shilton 0 71,815 0 0 0 71,815 71,815 71,815 0 9.2% 0 56,133 0 0 0 56,133 56,133

Woodland Grange Primary School, Oadby 0 117,504 13,851 0 0 131,355 117,504 117,504 0 9.2% 0 82,219 13,273 1,200 0 82,219 96,693

Little Hill Primary School 0 117,047 0 0 0 117,047 117,047 117,047 0 9.5% 0 34,387 0 0 0 34,387 34,387

The Hall School 0 137,952 0 586 0 138,538 137,952 137,952 0 9.6% 75,000 62,670 17,259 0 0 137,670 154,929

Glenfield Primary School 19,191 134,583 16,629 0 0 170,403 153,774 153,774 0 9.8% 0 146,268 38,136 -29,523 0 146,268 154,881

Orchard Community Primary School 0 74,807 4,882 0 0 79,690 74,807 74,807 0 9.8% 0 47,622 2,952 0 0 47,622 50,575

Holliers Walk Primary School 0 135,499 7,669 0 0 143,168 135,499 135,499 0 9.8% 0 63,853 24,664 0 0 63,853 88,517

Witherley Church of England Primary School 0 43,329 9,416 0 0 52,745 43,329 43,329 0 9.9% 0 22,377 4,482 0 0 22,377 26,859

Hose Church of England Primary School 0 31,435 3,430 9,295 0 44,159 31,435 31,435 0 9.9% 0 28,418 3,430 4,811 0 28,418 36,659

Thurlaston Church of England Primary School 0 46,751 0 0 0 46,751 46,751 46,751 0 10.0% 0 26,443 0 0 0 26,443 26,443

Hallaton Church of England Primary School 38 43,592 7,301 0 0 50,931 43,630 43,630 0 10.1% 0 44,404 13,657 0 0 44,404 58,061

All Saints Church of England Primary School 2,658 108,744 0 0 11,565 122,967 122,967 122,967 0 10.1% 0 76,132 0 0 23,886 76,132 100,018

St Mary’s Church of England Primary School, Hinckley 0 107,414 13 0 0 107,426 107,414 107,414 0 10.2% 0 69,385 0 0 0 69,385 69,385

Woodhouse Eaves, St Paul’s Church of England Primary School 0 74,655 0 0 0 74,655 74,655 74,655 0 10.3% 0 48,378 0 0 0 48,378 48,378

The Latimer School, Anstey 5,519 94,070 13,656 0 0 113,245 99,589 99,589 0 10.4% 0 81,823 18,228 0 0 81,823 100,051

Newton Burgoland Primary School 0 40,140 14,050 0 0 54,190 40,140 40,140 0 10.4% 0 22,172 17,594 0 0 22,172 39,767

Townlands Church of England Primary School 0 86,549 6,659 0 0 93,208 86,549 86,549 0 10.4% 0 56,462 3,963 2,663 0 56,462 63,088

Moira Infant School 0 44,994 13,818 0 0 58,811 44,994 44,994 0 10.5% 2,176 31,428 22,901 0 0 33,604 56,505

Water Leys Primary School 26,806 112,099 7,267 0 0 146,172 138,905 138,905 0 10.6% 0 55,541 11,442 0 0 55,541 66,982

Husbands Bosworth Church of England Primary School 0 42,896 9,778 0 0 52,674 42,896 42,896 0 11.1% 0 33,925 24,276 0 0 33,925 58,201

Kegworth Primary School 0 63,753 0 0 0 63,753 63,753 63,753 0 11.4% 0 5,475 0 3,605 0 5,475 9,080

Worthington School 0 39,312 7,349 0 0 46,661 39,312 39,312 0 11.5% 939 17,499 6,065 0 0 18,438 24,503

The Grove Primary School 0 126,787 2,001 0 0 128,788 126,787 126,787 0 11.5% 0 40,033 2,040 -1,646 7,908 40,033 48,335

Griffydam Primary School 0 52,824 2,225 0 0 55,049 52,824 52,824 0 11.5% 0 35,035 0 0 0 35,035 35,035

South Kilworth Church of England Primary School 0 44,970 8,573 46,391 0 99,934 44,970 44,970 0 11.7% 1,306 13,586 5,508 46,391 0 14,892 66,790

Manorfield Church of England Primary School 0 143,301 4,343 7,998 0 155,642 143,301 143,301 0 11.8% 0 80,859 2,210 19,813 0 80,859 102,882

Newtown Linford Primary School 0 38,254 824 0 0 39,078 38,254 38,254 0 11.9% 0 31,616 6,358 0 0 31,616 37,974

Long Clawson Church of England Primary School 0 58,342 5,046 1,666 0 65,054 58,342 58,342 0 11.9% 0 43,622 5,046 0 0 43,622 48,668

Brookside School 0 171,865 13,173 0 0 185,039 171,865 171,865 0 11.9% 0 175,892 27,615 0 0 175,892 203,507

Viscount Beaumont’s Church of England Primary School 0 58,227 0 0 0 58,227 58,227 58,227 0 12.3% 0 34,026 0 -389 0 34,026 33,638

Church Langton Church of England Primary School 51,417 39,168 0 0 0 90,585 90,585 90,585 0 12.4% 0 44,782 0 0 0 44,782 44,782

Tugby Church of England Primary School 503 37,489 2,476 0 0 40,467 37,992 37,992 0 12.5% 0 22,635 1,893 0 0 22,635 24,527

Breedon on the Hill, St Hardulph’s Church of England Primary School 1,880 38,686 199 0 0 40,765 40,566 40,566 0 12.6% 0 21,087 268 0 0 21,087 21,355

Barwell Newlands Community Primary School 25,000 112,207 9,420 0 0 146,627 137,207 137,207 0 12.7% 10,504 109,521 44,622 -12,340 0 120,025 152,307

St Edwards Church of England Primary School 74,800 15,182 4,521 0 0 94,503 89,982 89,982 0 12.8% 40,000 15,745 0 2,377 4,718 55,745 62,840

Newbold Verdon Primary School 0 123,718 0 0 8,171 131,889 131,889 131,889 0 13.2% 0 65,593 12,234 -12,234 8,171 65,593 73,764

Oakthorpe Primary School 15,432 50,164 6,616 0 0 72,211 65,596 65,596 0 13.4% 1,656 28,062 1,557 0 0 29,718 31,275

All Saints Church of England Primary School, Coalville 0 82,381 20,021 -4,885 0 97,517 82,381 82,381 0 13.6% 0 4,680 20,021 0 0 4,680 24,701

Diseworth Church of England Primary School 4,947 33,822 2,311 0 0 41,079 38,769 38,769 0 13.7% 0 27,816 14,637 0 0 27,816 42,453

Woodcote Primary School 16,181 101,432 4,572 0 0 122,185 117,613 117,613 0 13.8% 0 38,155 1 0 0 38,155 38,156

Scalford Church of England Primary School 5,887 44,220 3,884 0 0 53,990 50,106 50,106 0 13.8% 0 27,438 8,824 0 0 27,438 36,262

Thorpe Acre Infant School 0 80,590 11,563 -2,408 0 89,745 80,590 80,590 0 14.1% 0 73,903 11,563 -5,593 0 73,903 79,873

Paper D Appendix 1 - 2013-14 School Balances.xls Page 2

2
2



2013/14 School Balances

B01 

Committed 

Revenue 

Balance

B02 

Uncommitted 

Revenue 

Balance

B03 

Devolved 

Capital 

Balance

B05 Other 

Capital 

Balance

B06 

Community 

Focused 

Extended 

School 

Total 

Balance

Total 

Revenue 

Balance

Surpluses Deficits Total 

Revenue 

Balance 

%

B01 

Committed 

Revenue 

Balance

B02 

Uncommitted 

Revenue 

Balance

B03 

Devolved 

Capital 

Balance

B05 Other 

Capital 

Balance

B06 

Community 

Focused 

Extended 

School 

Total 

Revenue 

Balance

Total 

Balance

2012/13 School Balances

Newbold Church of England Primary School 0 41,183 4,060 0 0 45,243 41,183 41,183 0 15.1% 0 18,207 12,784 0 0 18,207 30,991

Dove Bank Primary School 0 73,846 11,528 0 0 85,374 73,846 73,846 0 15.3% 0 46,364 27,678 -9,226 0 46,364 64,816

Dunton Bassett Primary School 0 64,115 8,012 0 0 72,127 64,115 64,115 0 15.4% 0 41,990 7,088 0 0 41,990 49,078

Barwell Infant School 0 109,457 35 0 0 109,493 109,457 109,457 0 15.5% 6,562 66,681 0 0 0 73,243 73,243

Burbage Church of England Infant School 120,144 40,925 2,091 0 0 163,160 161,069 161,069 0 16.1% 0 56,998 62,555 -54,928 0 56,998 64,625

Burbage Junior School 0 203,735 937 0 0 204,672 203,735 203,735 0 16.6% 0 117,282 20,909 0 0 117,282 138,191

Higham on the Hill Church of England Primary School 0 59,027 12,958 0 0 71,985 59,027 59,027 0 17.0% 0 27,594 16,401 0 0 27,594 43,994

Somerby Primary School 0 38,819 5,982 -161 0 44,641 38,819 38,819 0 18.6% 0 11,205 7,851 -161 0 11,205 18,896

Stathern Primary School 0 81,719 9,766 -149 0 91,335 81,719 81,719 0 20.2% 0 65,004 26,002 0 0 65,004 91,007

Blaby Stokes Church of England Primary School 64,787 185,484 0 0 0 250,270 250,271 250,271 0 21.2% 0 131,208 27,241 0 0 131,208 158,449

St Mary’s Church of England Primary School Bitteswell 0 112,555 0 40,170 0 152,725 112,555 112,555 0 23.0% 33 52,072 0 40,170 0 52,104 92,274

Westfield Junior School 0 295,575 2,517 0 -12,077 286,015 283,498 283,498 0 25.0% 0 115,731 2,413 0 -12,077 115,731 106,066

Greystoke Primary School, Narborough 191,168 117,039 96 1,369 0 309,672 308,207 308,207 0 26.7% 0 123,911 38,201 1,369 -3,728 123,911 159,753

Primary Total 750,881 7,567,043 704,928 133,207 88,502 9,244,560 8,406,426 8,942,847 -536,421 7.1% 150,066 5,921,247 1,299,541 53,204 42,481 6,071,312 7,466,538

Secondary Schools

William Bradford Community College 0 -622,622 0 0 4,567 -618,055 -618,055 0 -618,055 -21.0% 0 -665,930 0 0 4,908 -665,930 -661,022

The Garendon High School 0 -114,884 11,786 0 0 -103,098 -114,884 0 -114,884 -5.6% 21,149 57,207 11,786 0 0 78,356 90,142

Hind Leys Community College 0 -163,473 32,555 -29,459 28,043 -132,336 -135,431 0 -135,431 -4.8% 0 -161,067 35,337 -29,459 28,926 -161,067 -126,264

Burleigh Community College 0 -182,132 0 -14,852 0 -196,984 -182,132 0 -182,132 -2.8% 1,043 -714,748 0 0 0 -713,706 -713,706

Shepshed High School 0 -21,715 32,074 -23,102 1,727 -11,017 -19,988 0 -19,988 -0.8% 0 44,451 32,731 -23,102 0 44,451 54,080

Longslade Community College 0 95,121 14,437 0 -55,851 53,706 39,269 39,269 0 1.4% 0 69,718 44,487 0 -73,705 69,718 40,500

The Stonehill High School 0 159,998 0 0 -1,114 158,884 158,884 158,884 0 4.9% 0 140,477 1,543 0 -1,114 140,477 140,906

Secondary Total 0 -849,708 90,851 -67,414 -22,629 -848,899 -872,337 198,153 -1,070,489 -3.1% 22,191 -1,229,892 125,883 -52,562 -40,985 -1,207,700 -1,175,363

Mainstream Total 750,881 6,717,335 795,779 65,793 65,873 8,395,661 7,534,089 9,141,000 -1,606,911 5.2% 172,257 4,691,355 1,425,424 642 1,497 4,863,612 6,291,175

Special Schools

Birch Wood School 0 -550,309 0 0 0 -550,309 -550,309 0 -550,309 -25.1% 0 -110,789 0 0 0 -110,789 -110,789

Maplewell Hall School 0 154,745 6,957 0 0 161,702 154,745 154,745 0 6.3% 0 241,783 13,963 0 0 241,783 255,746

Ashmount School 0 118,155 6,801 0 0 124,956 118,155 118,155 0 6.4% 0 161,432 0 0 0 161,432 161,432

Wigston Menphys Centre 44,750 44,750 44,750 44,750 0 0 31,020 0 0 0 31,020 31,020

Burbage Menphys Centre 59,930 59,930 59,930 59,930 0 0 74,813 0 0 0 74,813 74,813

Special Total 0 -172,730 13,758 0 0 -158,972 -172,730 377,579 -550,309 -2.7% 0 398,259 13,963 0 0 398,259 412,223

Nursery Schools

Countesthorpe Nursery School 0 -6,204 9,135 0 0 2,931 -6,204 0 -6,204 -3.8% 379 7,483 25,066 0 0 7,862 32,928

PRU

Oakfield 0 51,871 5,384 0 0 57,255 51,871 51,871 0 0

Grand Total 750,881 6,590,272 824,056 65,793 65,873 8,296,875 7,407,026 9,570,450 -2,163,424 4.8% 172,636 5,097,097 1,464,454 642 1,497 5,269,733 6,736,325

2013/14 Net Movement in Balances 578,244 1,493,176 -640,397 65,151 64,377 1,560,550

23%

2013/14 Gross Movement in Total Revenue Balances 2,834,125

42%

No of 

Schools

Value        

£

No of 

Schools

Value           

£

Deficit           

£

Surplus        

£

No of 

Schools Value        £

No of 

Schools

Value           

£

Deficit           

£

Surplus        

£

Primary 9 -536,421 142 8,942,847 -59,602 62,978 6 -510,557 145 6,581,869 -85,093 45,392

Secondary 5 -1,070,489 2 198,153 -214,098 99,076 3 -1,540,703 4 333,002 -513,568 83,251

Special 1 -550,309 4 377,579 -550,309 94,395 1 -110,789 4 509,048 -110,789 127,262

Nursery 1 -6,204 -6,204 1 7,862

PRU 1 51,871 51,871 1 0

Total 16 -2,163,424 149 9,570,450 10 -2,162,048 155 7,431,781

10% 90% 6% 94%

Deficit Surplus AverageDeficit Surplus Average

Paper D Appendix 1 - 2013-14 School Balances.xls Page 3

2
3



2
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

SCHOOLS FORUM 

11TH SEPTEMBER 2014 

SEND REFORM AND PERSONAL BUDGETS 

 

Content Applicable to; School Phase; 

Maintained Primary and 
Secondary Schools 

X Pre School X 

Academies X Foundation Stage X 

PVI Settings X Primary X 

Special Schools / 
Academies 

X Secondary X 

Local Authority X Post 16 X 

  High Needs X 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

Content Requires; By; 

Noting  Maintained Primary School 
Members 

X 

Decision X Maintained Secondary 
School Members 

X 

  Maintained Special School 
Members 

X 

  Academy Members X 

  All Schools Forum X 

 
 
1. To make Schools Forum aware of the responsibility to develop personal budgets and 

this to include funding in the high needs block. 

Recommendation 

2. Schools Forum are asked to nominate a member to be part of a small working group 

of Headteachers, to agree the scope and mechanism to deliver personal budgets for 

children and young people with education health and care plans 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 725



Introduction 

3. This report is to make Schools Forum aware of SEND reform, the potential impact of 

‘Personal Budgets’ on the high needs block of the Direct schools grant and the 

authorities intention to engage with schools to establish a robust and transparent 

system to fulfil this requirement. 

 

Background 

4. The Children and Families Act 2014 requires local authorities to offer families a 

Personal Budget so that they have more choice and control over the support they 

need. Personalisation is at the heart of the Special Educational Needs and Disability 

(SEND) reforms, and is about putting children, young people and their families at the 

centre of the Education, Health and Care (EHC) process. Leicestershire County 

Council and health are committed to developing joint arrangements for commissioning 

services to improve outcomes for children and young people with special educational 

needs or disabilities.  

5. A personal budget is an amount of money that can be used to arrange and pay for the 

support agreed in Education, Health and Care plans. The amount  allocated depends 

on the needs and outcomes identified in each plan and will alter as they change. 

Personal Budgets gives parents/young adults more flexibility, choice and control over 

the way that support is delivered and enables them to be in charge of how the money 

for support is spent to meet the outcomes outlined in an EHC plan. 

6. From the 1st of September 2014 Leicestershire will be offering personal budgets and 

direct payments in accordance with existing policies and procedures across health 

and children’s/adults social care. Currently there are no ‘personal budget options’ for 

education. The scope of Personal Budgets will need to increase over time to achieve 

the ambition of the legislation. 

7. A child or young person who has an Education Health and Care Plan and is resident 

in Leicestershire may be eligible to have a Personal Budget to meet the outcomes 

detailed in their EHC Plan. The personal budget may include funding from education, 

health and social care although the amount of the personal budget will vary depending 

on eligibility,  child’s/young person’s needs and the outcomes to be achieved. A 

personal budget will not include the funding for a school place and the scope for a 

personal budget will vary depending on the school preference, i.e. Some (special) 

schools Will have services and provisions as part of their school’s ‘normal’ provision 

which would mitigate against specified [provisions in the Education health and care 

plan being offered as a personal budget. 

8. What is in scope for discussion is therefore element 2 and element 3 (top up funding). 

Element 2 funding being schools funding for the first £6,000 of a pupils additional 

needs and access top up funding where the cost of the additional support  exceeds 

26



£6,000, whilst schools will continue to meet needs in this manner the funding cannot 

be used to create a personal budget without the permission of the school. 

9. A further consideration will need to include what should also be included in top up 

funding, for example input from SEN services set out in the child’s/young person’s 

education, health and care plan. 

10. School’s Forum should note that prior to any personal budget allocation being agreed, 

then for ‘special educational provision’ the school’s agreement must be sought. The 

current methodology for identifying the needs of individual pupils may need to be 

reviewed as a result of both personalisation and that in funding terms we are required 

to fund ‘additional’ needs rather than special educational needs.  

11. From the 1st of September 14 Leicestershire will not be in a position to offer a 

personal budget for education but we need in the process of developing this to provide 

young people and families with greater choice and control. 

12. In the future this will mean that children and young people who need additional 

educational support, agreed as part of their EHC plan may be able to have a personal 

budget from education to arrange the support themselves. 

13. Personal budgets are not from a new pot of money they are just a more transparent 

way to spend the money that is available to support children and young people up to 

the age of 25 years old with special educational needs. 

14. There are four ways in which the young person/parent can manage their Personal 

Budget. These are as follows: 

a) Direct payments also referred to as a cash payment, this is where individuals 

receive the cash to contract, purchase and manage services themselves. A 

Direct Payment is money given to people to buy the support agreed in the EHC 

plan instead of Leicestershire County Council, school and/or health 

commissioning and arranging services for them. 

b) Third party arrangements also referred to as a third party cash/ direct payment, 

this is where the money is paid to someone that the family/young person choose 

an individual or an organisation that runs a payments service. Or the money is 

sent to a support provider referred to as a Provider Managed Account. 

c) An organised arrangement also referred to as a managed budget, this is where 

Leicestershire County Council, school, college or health services hold the funds 

and commissions the support specified in the EHC plan with contracted 

providers.  

 d) A combination of the above 

 

27



15. The code of practice states the following; 

 9.112 The special educational provision specified in an EHC plan can include provision 
funded from the school’s budget share (or in colleges from their formula funding) and 
more specialist provision funded wholly or partly from the local authority’s high needs 
funding. It is this latter funding that is used for Personal Budgets, although schools and 
colleges should be encouraged to personalise the support they provide and they can 
choose to contribute their own funding to a Personal Budget (this will usually be an 
organised arrangement managed by the setting, but some schools and colleges, including 
specialist settings, have made innovative arrangements with young people, giving them 
direct (cash) payments).  

 9.113 High needs funding can also be used to commission services from schools and 
colleges, including from special schools. In practice, this will mean the funding from the 
local authority’s high needs budget for the SEN element of a Personal Budget will vary 
depending on how services are commissioned locally and what schools and colleges are 
expected to provide as part of the Local Offer. The child’s parent or the young person 
should be made aware that the scope for a Personal Budget varies depending on their 
school preference. For example, as part of their core provision, special schools and 
colleges make some specialist provision available that is not normally available at 
mainstream schools and colleges. The particular choice of a special school, with 
integrated specialist provision, might reduce the scope for a Personal Budget, whereas 
the choice of a place in a mainstream school that does not make that particular provision 
could increase the opportunity for a Personal Budget. ‘ 

16. Given the complex nature of these requirements, then a working group to work up 
proposals and policy recommendations regarding this is being recommended. Any 
working party will need to include parent and young person input. 

Resource Implications 
 
17. It is not possible to precisely quantify the financial implications from these 

requirements but the end point should be a zero impact on spend as personal budgets 
are a mechanism for transferring the same amount of money from one party to 
another.  

 
Equal Opportunity Issues 
 
18. These changes should enable greater flexibility and choice for families and young 

people, deliver a person centred approach to achieving outcomes. 
 
 
 
Officer to contact 
 
Chris Bristow 
Interim Head of Strategy 
Chris.bristow@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 6767 

 
 

28



Appendix A 

Background.  

The Children and Families Act 2014 requires Local Authorities to offer families a personal 

budget so that they have more choice and control over the support they need.  

Personalisation is at the heart of the Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 

reforms, and is about putting children, young people and their families at the centre of the 

Education, Health and Care (EHC) process. It means starting with the person as an 

individual with strengths, preferences and aspirations, identifying their needs and making 

choices about how and when they are supported to live their lives.  

Scope of this guidance.  

This guidance covers the approach taken by Leicestershire County Council and the two 

Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) for personal budgets where a child 

or young person has an Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan. This document is intended 

to draw upon existing policies across Leicestershire County Council and the CCG’s for 

personal budgets and/or direct payments. 

This guidance does not replace Leicestershire County Council’s duty to Carers and their 

right to have a Carers Assessment. Information for Carers can be found by following the 

link below.  

Looking after someone you care about? 

Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 

Commitment.  

Leicestershire County Council and the CCG’s are committed to developing joint 

arrangements for commissioning services, to improve outcomes for children and young 

people with Special Educational Needs or Disabilities.  

For the 1st of September 2014 Leicestershire will be offering personal budgets and direct 

payments in accordance with existing policies and procedures.  

In the future this will be extended to personal budgets across education, health and social 

care. The scope of personal budgets will increase over time as joint commissioning 

arrangements provide greater opportunity for choice and control over local provision.  

The involvement of children, young people and families is integral to the development of 

personal budgets and shaping local service delivery. Leicestershire County Council and the 

CCG’s are committed to co-producing all planning of services, policies and procedures with 

children, young people and families to ensure that they are involved in decision making 

processes at both an individual and strategic level. 

Parents and carers in Leicestershire have described co-production as: 

29



“Co-production should be about children, their parent/ carers, local education authorities, 

health professionals, social workers and anyone else involved in the child's welfare coming 

together as equals to achieve a life changing document. Everyone's feelings and ideas 

should be considered and reflected at every stage and it is imperative that no one takes a 

role of dominance. The final document should be a shared agreement and understanding”. 

“Co-production is the biggest and most exciting change to hit SEND in the years I've been 

involved. Parents being listened to, being equal partners in decision making and 

commissioning decisions. Getting away from that awful phrase 'what are they going to do 

for us?' and exchanging it for 'What can we do for ourselves, with their help?' Parents - and 

our kids themselves - being involved, empowered and listened to”. 

What is a Personal Budget?  

A personal budget is an amount of money that can be used to arrange and pay for some of 

the support agreed in the child or young person’s Education, Health and Care plan. The 

amount that is allocated depends on the needs and outcomes identified in the plan and can 

alter as they change. Personal budgets gives children, young people and families more 

flexibility, choice and control over the way that support is delivered and enables them to be 

in charge of how the money for support is spent to meet the outcomes outlined in an EHC 

plan. 

Eligibility. 

A parent of a child and/or young person who has an Education Health and Care Plan and is 

resident in Leicestershire has the right to request a personal budget to meet the outcomes 

detailed in their EHC Plan. The personal budget may include funding from education, health 

and social care although the amount of the personal budget will vary depending on eligibility 

for the different components, the child or young person’s needs and the outcomes to be 

achieved.  

In some cases a parent of a child or young person may have a personal budget from one or 

more source, i.e. education, social care and/or health. An education, health and social care 

budget combined is sometimes referred to as an ‘Individual Personal Budget’. 

A parent of a child or young person may be offered a personal budget for social care or for 

health support without having an EHC plan, i.e. having an EHC plan is not the only way a 

personal budget may be offered to meet identified social care or health needs. 

Education, health and social care have separate eligibility criteria’s for funding and those 

services that can be provided by a direct/cash payment. There are three main sources of 

funding for a personal budget, which are: 

Education.   

A Special Educational Needs (SEN) personal budget may be made available should a child 

or young person aged 0-25 years have an Education Health Care Plan. A SEN personal 

30



budget is a sum of money made available by the Local Authority because it will not be 

possible to meet the child or young person’s learning needs from the high needs funding 

made available to schools. The school/college involved has funding for special educational 

needs through the school funding system and therefore only children and young people 

with the most severe and complex learning support needs are likely to need a SEN 

personal budget. 

A SEN personal budget will not be used to fund a school place or a post 16 institution. 

Funding for special educational provision in a personal budget will come from a high needs 

block (element 3) and will only include funding from a schools notional SEN budget 

(element 2) with the support and agreement of the head teacher. In addition schools will 

need to give permission before the Local Authority can agree to fund special educational 

provision through a direct payment to the family where the service or equipment is to be 

provided on the school premises. 

Not every child or young person with an EHC Plan will have a SEN personal budget. The 

scope of personal budgets will reflect local commissioning arrangements and will not 

normally be used for services that a school or college provides, from its own budget, as part 

of the local offer. In practice this means that the parent or young person will need to be 

made aware that the scope for a personal budget will differ depending on school 

placement. It may be that the setting already provides the specialist provision required and 

in such a case a personal budget would not be available. For example, as part of their core 

provision, special schools and colleges make some specialist provision available that is not 

normally available at mainstream schools and colleges. The particular choice of a special 

school, with integrated specialist provision, might reduce the scope for a personal budget, 

whereas the choice of a place in mainstream school that does not make that particular 

provision could increase the opportunity for a personal budget.  

From the 1st of September 2014 Leicestershire County Council will not be offering a 

personal budget for education. We are in the process of working with partner agencies to 

develop this further to provide young people and families with greater choice and control. In 

the future this will mean that children and young people who need additional educational 

support agreed as part of their EHC plan may be able to have a personal budget from 

education to arrange the support themselves.  

Social Care.  

A personal social care budget may be made available if a child or young person is 

assessed as needing additional and individual support at home and when out and about in 

the local and wider community. This may include, support to help in the home, support to 

access social activities and/or short break services to avoid family breakdown. Some 

children and young people may already be receiving a service or a direct payment from 

social care and this will continue throughout the process and be incorporated in the final 

EHC plan.  

31



For the 1st of September 2014 Leicestershire County Council will offer a direct payment for 

eligible children and young people in line with existing policies and procedures for 0-18 year 

olds and a personal budget for young people aged 18 and above.  

A parent of a disabled child or young person can request a Child in Need Assessment. The 

eligibility criteria used by the Disabled Children’s Service primarily surrounds the care of the 

disabled child and the ability of the parent/carer to continue to care for the child/young 

person within the family home. 

For young people age 18 and above, eligibility for social care support is assessed using 

Government Guidance on Eligibility Criteria for Adult Social Care. The eligibility decision is 

based on the risks to an individual’s independence and wellbeing.  

Disabled Children and their Families.  

Eligibility for support at home and in the community.  

Health.  

A personal health budget may be made available should a child or young person be eligible 

for NHS Continuing Care or have other health needs that the NHS assess are not being 

met sufficiently through services within the local offer. Children and young people who are 

supported through NHS Continuing Care funding, will have the right to request a personal 

health budget from April 2014, and this will become a right to have a personal health budget 

in October 2014.  

There are very few things a personal health budget cannot be spent on, as it is designed to 

offer flexibility and control to children, young people and families and all proposals will be 

considered in this context. However, the support purchased must be agreed with the health 

professional and with the CCG to ensure that it is safe, clinically appropriate and meets the 

identified health outcomes. For these same reasons, some complex equipment that 

sustains life, such as a ventilator for example cannot be purchased through a personal 

health budget.  

NHS Continuing Care for Children. 

NHS Continuing Healthcare.  

Preparing a Personal Budget and the process.  

Personal budgets are not from a new pot of money they are just a more transparent way to 

spend the money that is available to support children, young people and families up to the 

age of 25 years with Special Educational Needs or Disability. 

If a child or young person has been assessed as needing an EHC plan, a parent or young 

person can request a personal budget. Personal budgets are optional and children and 

young people can continue with their existing arrangements if they want to. The 

professional coordinating the EHC plan will discuss the option of a personal budget with the 

32



parent or young person and provide information on having and managing a personal 

budget. A personal budget may also be requested during a statutory review or a 

reassessment of an existing EHC plan.   

It is important that personal budgets are considered as part of the coordinated assessment 

and EHC planning process, with a clear focus on improving outcomes for children and 

young people. 

How is funding for a Personal Budget determined?  

Professionals from services that contribute to an EHC plan (i.e. health, social care and 

education) will be required to provide indicative budgets based on their assessment of a 

child or young person's level of need. These indicative budgets will be added together to 

provide a total budget which is agreed at the EHC panel if an EHC plan is agreed.  

For 1st September 2014 existing direct payment mechanisms will be used as part of the 

offer from the Disabled Children's Service and existing personal budget arrangements for 

Adult Social Care (young people 18 and above). We are looking to extend this further next 

year to include personal SEN budgets and the development of a Resource Allocation 

System.  

CCG’s are currently developing and trialling their personal health budget offer and children 

and young people with Continuing Care needs or particularly complex health needs are 

welcome to request a personal health budget at this time. From October 2014 children and 

young people with Continuing Care needs have the right to have a personal health budget, 

and the CCG’s are on track to have the process working properly for that time.  

Disagreements/Complaints.  

If a direct payment for special educational provision is refused on the grounds set out in 

The Special Educational Needs (Personal Budgets) Regulations 2014 Leicestershire 

County Council will set out the reasons in writing and inform the parent or the young person 

of their right to request a formal review of the decision. Where requested to do so, the Local 

Authority will review its decision and consider any representations made by the child’s 

parent or young person. The Local Authority will write to the child’s parent or the young 

person to notify them of the outcome of the review outlining the reasons for the decision. 

Where the disagreement relates to the special educational provision secured through a 

personal budget the parent or young person can appeal to the First – tier Tribunal (SEN 

and Disability), as with any disagreement about provision to be specified in an EHC plan.  

If the parent or young person is not happy with a decision made in relation to the health 

and/or social care element of a personal budget the parent or young person will need to be 

directed to the appropriate complaints procedure for the CCG and/or Social Care. 

Different options for managing a Personal Budget.  

There are four ways in which a personal budget can be managed.  

33



• Direct Payments are cash payments which enable a parent or young person to organise, 

purchase and manage services themselves. A direct payment may be utilised to purchase a 

range of services as part of a child or young person’s EHC plan, such as to provide 

personal care within the home or support to access social activities. A Direct Payment can 

also be used to employ a Personal Assistant. 

• Third party arrangements also referred to as a third party cash/ direct payment, this is 

where the money is paid to a nominated person, for example, a friend or relative, or an 

organisation that runs a payments service. Or the money could be sent to a support 

provider - this is called a Provider Managed Account. An agency acting as a third party may 

make a charge for doing this.  

• An organised arrangement also referred to as a managed/notional budget, is where 

Leicestershire County Council, the CCG, school or college holds the funds and 

commissions the support specified in the EHC plan with contracted providers.  

• A combination of the above. For example; a direct payment to employ a Personal 

Assistant to access the local community and a council managed domiciliary care service for 

support to get up and ready in the morning.  

What is included in the personal budget?  

From the 1st September 2014 Leicestershire County Council will not be offering a SEN 

personal budget. However in the future if a child or young person is eligible for a personal 

SEN budget they may be able to use the budget to fund different ways of meeting the 

identified education outcome.  

Leicestershire County Council and the CCG’s have separate guidance which specifies what 

a direct/cash payment can be spent on. A common theme is that a personal budget can 

only be used to meet the needs and outcomes agreed in the support plan. Examples of how 

children and young people are currently using their cash/direct payment in Leicestershire 

include; short breaks, domiciliary care to provide support in the home, employing a 

Personal Assistant and support to access social activities. 

Information on each agency’s direct/cash payment guidance and about services that are 

available in the area for children and young people to access through a personal budget 

and direct payment will be made available on the local offer website and will be updated 

regularly.  

What is not included in the Personal Budget? 

Information on each agency’s direct/cash payment guidance will be made available on the 

local offer website. The existing guidance outlines what a direct/cash payment can and 

cannot be spent on. Common themes that a cash/direct payment cannot be spent on 

include; anything that does not meet an identified outcome within the support plan, anything 

that isn’t safe or legal, to purchase alcohol and tobacco, for betting or gambling, to pay for 

housing or other household costs, permanent residential/nursing care, to employ someone 

34



living in the same household except where due to exceptional circumstances this is the only 

available option. 

Who can receive a direct/cash payment? 

Direct payments for special educational provision, health and social care provision are 

subject to separate regulations. These are: 

The Community Care, services for Carers and Children’s Services (Direct Payments) 

regulations 2009 (the 2009 regulations will be replaced by those made under the Care Act 

2014).  

The National Health Service (Direct Payment) Regulations 2013. 

The Special Educational Needs (Personal Budgets) Regulations 2014. 

The regulations have common requirements including those covering consent, use of 

nominees, conditions of receipt, monitoring and review of direct payments and persons to 

whom direct payments must not be made (such as those subject to certain rehabilitation 

orders). Regulations governing the use of direct payments for special educational provision 

place a number of additional requirements on both local authorities and parents before a 

direct payment can be agreed. These include requirements to consider the impact on other 

service users and value for money and to seek agreement from educational establishments 

where a service funded by direct payments is delivered on their premises.  

Mental Capacity. 

Where a person lacks capacity and direct payments are being considered as a means of 

providing support, professionals must establish that the person lacks capacity by carrying 

out an appropriate mental capacity test and best interest’s evaluation in accordance with 

the Mental Capacity Act 2005. 

The Mental Capacity Act 2005 provides a framework to empower and protect people who 

may lack capacity to make some decisions for themselves. The Mental Capacity Act make 

clear who can take decisions in which situations, and how they should go about this. 

Anyone who works with or cares for an adult (a person aged 16 or over) who lacks capacity 

must comply with the Mental Capacity Act 2005 when making decisions or acting for that 

person.  

The underlying philosophy of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 is to ensure that those who lack 

capacity are empowered to make as many decisions for themselves as possible and that 

any decision made, or action taken, on their behalf is made in their best interests.  

The representative who has consented to manage the direct payment on behalf of a person 

who has been deemed to lack the capacity to consent must always act in the best interest 

of that person. Representatives and professionals making best interest decisions for a 

person who lacks the capacity to make specific decisions must evidence that they have 

acted in accordance with the Mental Capacity Act 2005.  

35



Managing and Using the Personal Budget.  

A Parent or young person will be offered advice and support about personal budgets and 

managing direct payments. This will include employing Personal Assistants and the legal 

responsibilities of being an employer, i.e. sickness and holidays, tax and National Insurance 

contributions, Disclosure and Barring checks (DBS) and Employers Liability Insurance.  

Information will be made available on payroll services and third party management support 

and details will be published on the local offer website. Children and young people receiving 

a direct/cash payment from Leicestershire County Council have the option of using the 

Local Authorities Payroll Service.  

The support provided to parents and young people to set up, manage and review the 

direct/cash payment will be provided  in accordance with Leicestershire County Council and 

the CCG’s existing policies and procedures. A summary of what it involved is outlined 

below. 

A written agreement will need be signed before a payment is made which will outline the 

responsibilities and obligations of the funding agency and those of the parent or young 

person. This will include signing to accept the responsibility to arrange and manage the 

direct/cash payment to purchase support to meet the identified needs and outcomes 

outlined in the support plan.  If a parent or young person does not adhere to the agreement 

that has been signed, for example, if the money is misused then it may have to be paid 

back and the cash/direct payment withdrawn or further conditions imposed. CCG’s will 

require a separate agreement with the parent or young person, as it is a separate legal 

entity to the Local Authority.  

A separate bank or building society account will need to be set up for the direct/cash 

payment to be paid into. If there is a health component to the personal budget, this may be 

paid into the same bank account so that the recipient has all the money in one place.  

Records of expenditure will need to be kept to evidence how the cash/direct payment has 

been spent. This includes; bank statements, invoices and receipts. These will be audited 

when the support plan is reviewed in line with each agency’s existing policies and 

procedures. 

If there is a surplus of money in the account that has not been agreed for specific 

expenditure in the EHC plan then this money may have to be returned .There may also be 

situations where the cash payment may be temporarily suspended for a period of time. For 

example; if a child or young person goes into hospital. Specific details will be outlined in 

each agencies direct/cash payment agreement. 

Each funding agency will conduct a statutory review of the personal budget in line with their 

existing policies and procedures. For example: The Disabled Children’s Team will review 

the cash/direct payment 3 months after receiving the direct payment and 6 monthly 

thereafter. Adult Social Care (if a young person is 18 and above) will carry out a light touch 

review within 3 months of receiving the cash/direct payment and 12 monthly thereafter 

36



unless a shorter period has been identified. The CCG will review the direct payment at 

three months and then at six months. After that it will be reviewed six monthly or yearly 

depending on individual circumstances.  

The EHC plan will be reviewed by Leicestershire County Council as a minimum every 12 

months. The review will focus on the child or young person’s progress and will include 

information on existing personal budget arrangements across education, health and social 

care and how they contribute towards achieving the outcomes specified in the EHC plan.  

Safeguarding.  

The move towards personalisation of services and self-directed support, although a positive 

step in improving choice and control for parents and young people, does not replace, or 

reduce the Local Authority’s duty of care to ensure that children and vulnerable adults are 

protected from abuse.  

If a safeguarding concern is reported regarding someone who is in receipt of a personal 

budget, including a direct payment, this will be investigated following the appropriate 

safeguarding procedure. 

Change of circumstances.  

If a child or young person’s circumstances change in any way then this will be taken into 

account as part of the annual review of the EHC plan. If there is a significant change in the 

child or young person’s educational circumstances then the parent or young person can 

request a reassessment or early review of the EHC plan. If there is a change of 

circumstances or significant change that may affect the social care or health element of the 

EHC plan then the parent or young person can contact the appropriate lead professional or 

agency i.e. the Disabled Children’s Team/Adult Social Care/ the CCG and request a 

reassessment.  

 

 

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

SCHOOLS FORUM 
 

2015/16 School Funding Consultation 

 

18 September 2014 
 
    

Content Applicable to; School Phase; 

Maintained Primary and 
Secondary Schools 

X Pre School X 

Academies X Foundation Stage X 

PVI Settings  Primary X 

Special Schools / 
Academies 

X Secondary X 

Local Authority X Post 16  

  High Needs X 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

Content Requires; By; 

Noting X Maintained Primary School 
Members 

 

Decision X Maintained Secondary 
School Members 

 

  Maintained Special School 
Members 

 

  Academy Members  

  All Schools Forum X 

 
1. This report presents the consultation responses on 2015/16 school funding, seeks 

Schools Forum support on the recommendations to be made to the County 
Council’s Cabinet on 13 October and collect any comments that Schools Forum 
would wish to be included in the Cabinet Report. 

 
 
2. The accepted process for the issue of reports to Schools Forum is that they are 

issued one week in advance of the meeting. The timescale in which to deliver the 
2015/16 school formula, the inability to consult with schools during the summer 
break and the need to maximise the consultation timescale with schools result in 
the consultation feedback being presented to the meeting. In order to allow 
Members to consider the views of schools it is recommended that the meeting 

Agenda Item 839



should be adjourned for 30 minutes after the presentation of this report to give time 
for consideration of the issues raised. 

 
Recommendations 
3. That Schools Forum consider the consultation responses and the local authority 

reply to them. 
 
4. That Schools Forum consider whether the proposals supported unanimously in 

previous meetings should be amended as a result of the consultation responses. 
 
5. That Schools Forum supports the formula proposals for presentation to Cabinet on 

13 October for decision together with any comments to be included in the report. 
  

Background 

6. Schools Forum considered and supported the local authority’s principles for the 
allocation of the additional funding for 2015/16 at meetings on 16 June and 5 
September. At both meetings the principles have been supported which have been; 

 
a) To address two key areas where the analysis of the Leicestershire school 

funding formula provided less funding than in similar local authorities, namely 
primary basic entitlement and prior attainment. 

 
b) That all education providers across Leicestershire have been affected by low 

funding levels and should receive an increase in funding 
 
c) That the formula should not contain any additional factors from those used in 

2014/15 
 

 
7. The 2015/16 School Funding Task and Finish Group met on three occasions, 25 

June, 28 July and 11 August. The group consisting of all school phases, 
headteachers, governors and business managers fully endorsed the principles for 
the allocation of funding. It also considered further principles and constraints in 
determining the best solution for all Leicestershire pupils; 

 
a) The Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) is so engrained in school funding that 

some schools will not benefit from additional funding until it is removed and that 
the additional funding is insufficient to do this 

 
b) The Government policy which is moving in the direction of more pupil led funding 
 
c) That high needs and early years providers should receive an increase in funding 

commensurate with that for secondary schools given the focus given to increasing 
primary AWPU 

 
8. Consultation with schools was launched on 1 September and closed on 17 

September. Schools have been made aware of the consultation through 2 posts on 
EIS and through the Directors newsletter circulated to all headteachers. Briefings 
through LPH and LSH were offered, a meeting open to LSH was held on 16 

40



September and briefings for LPH will be held on 30 September and 1 October. LSSH 
have been engaged through their Headteacher group. 

 
Consultation Outcome 

9. 13 formal consultation responses were received; 
 
 7 primary all in favour of the proposals 
 6 secondary, 2 generally supportive of the proposals but with some caveats and 4 

not supportive 
 

10. Appendix 1 gives the consultation feedback submitted to the local authority, the 
consultation clearly stated that emailed responses would not be considered  as 
formal consultation but are shown to ensure Schools Forum has sight of all feedback 
received. Where schools have requested clarification or specific information on the 
proposals this is not included. 

 
Local Authority Response 

11. The following key messages address a number of the points raised through the 
consultation, there is not a response to every point but responds to the key groups of 
issues. It is not presented in order of importance or impact and is purely a list; 

 
a) The timescale of the consultation and release of information - the DfE issued the 

information after Leicestershire schools has entered the summer break, 
consultation was released at the commencement of the autumn term. Decisions 
must be taken by Cabinet on 13 October to ensure proposals are with the DfE by 
31 October.  

 
b) Age Range Changes – the proposals make no changes to the proposals for 

funding age range changes given the national expectation of the Education 
Funding Agency (EFA) is that they should be funded by local authorities otherwise 
funding will be withdrawn to allow the EFA to fund them directly.  The financial 
impact of age range changes is an issue for individual schools to be considered 
when making decisions on change, the role of the local authority and the Schools 
Forum has been to define an approach to funding that allows schools to expand 
and for schools reducing in roll to have limited protection to provide a best solution 
for Leicestershire which would not be the case should the local authority have not 
acted and the EFA imposed a significant reduction in funding. The basic allocation 
for school funding is pupils on roll, the lesser the pupils, the lesser the funding. 

 
c) Lagged Funding – the local authority is in no position to alter the national school 

funding system which is based on lagged funding. 
 
d) Should other elements of the formula have been changed – the process has been 

to allocate additional funding and not to do a wide scale formula review which was 
not possible in the timescale. The proposals fund areas where comparison with 
similar authorities showed lower funding for Leicestershire schools, areas that 
have funding allocations in excess of that in similar authorities remain at that level. 

 
e) Allocations to early years and special needs providers – One of the fundamental 

local principles in determining the allocation of this funding is that all providers 
should benefit. For all the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) blocks of funding 

41



Leicestershire has a relative low funding position. The proposals are to increase 
funding by the lower increase of primary and secondary funding. For early year 
this removes £0.75m (3%) from the additional £20.48m from the funding 
distributed to primary and secondary schools, the increase to special needs 
providers is funded from current resources. The DSG blocks have been and will 
continue to be used flexibly to best meet the needs of all Leicestershire pupils, for 
example age range change protection in 2015/16 will be funded from early years 
and high needs underspends but supports largely secondary schools. 

 
f) Why can’t all schools just get an additional £240 per pupil – for schools protected 

by MFG it is necessary to provide sufficient funding to increase the formula 
allocation in excess of the guaranteed funding level and then an additional £240 
per pupil. To illustrate, for the primary school with the highest proportion of their 
budget provided by MFG would require a per pupil increase of £1,367 and for the 
highest protected secondary school £779 to ensure an additional £240 per pupil. 
This is not affordable within the grant increase. 

 
g) Why such a large increase in primary AWPU – the fundamental principle followed 

has been to bring funding in line with similar authorities where the comparison 
identified where schools in Leicestershire received lower funding. 

 
h) KS4 should receive more as the cost of education is greater – the current formula 

recognises this through the Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) which recognises 
that costs increase over primary at KS3 and again for KS4, this position is 
unchanged by the proposals. 

 
i) The additional funding is meant for primary and secondary schools they should 

receive it all – the proposal deliver 97% of the additional funding to primary and 
secondary schools and the reminder to early years providers. Published research 
shows that pupils that have received good early learning provision enter school 
better prepared and able to learn and achieve better outcomes. 

 
j) Why can’t schools all get the minimum funding levels quoted by the DfE – the 

minimum funding levels are used to allocate funding to local authorities, they do 
not however recognise all funding elements used with in the school funding 
formula such as rent, rates and MFG nor do they provide funding for the budgets 
centrally retained by the local authority on behalf of schools such as copyright, 
schools causing concern, past retirement costs. Additionally £2m has been 
transferred annually from the school block to the high needs block to meet school 
based high needs costs since the separation of DSG into three blocks of funding. 
It is therefore not possible to fund school equal to the minimum funding levels. The 
EFA have no expectation that local authorities should implement minimum funding 
levels in their formula and allocation is a matter for local decision. 

 
k) The DfE say schools should get an additional £240 per pupil – the £240 per pupil 

is additional funding to the local authority points f & j detail why it is not possible to 
fund all schools at that level.. The decision on allocation of the additional funding 
is one for the local authority and the funding blocks remain flexible.  

 
l) Statistical neighbour comparison is not valid for making funding decisions – the 

process has been to identify the most appropriate basis of allocation and not 

42



conduct a full formula review. A formula review was rejected by the 2013/14 
school funding working group given the first movement to a national formula had 
created significant turbulence in school budgets, age range changes were creating 
turbulence for secondary schools and therefore 2014/15 should be used to 
generate a period of relative stability, this position is unchanged. This level of 
financial information was made available by the EFA for the first time in 2013/14 
and was also used by the 2014/15 school funding working group in formulating 
this decision. Statistical neighbour comparison is widely used within performance 
indicators and the data sets used by OfSTED and other government departments.  

 
 

Conclusion 
12. The proposals have been formulated and tested with a wide range of schools 

through both the Schools Forum and the 2015/16 School Funding Task and Finish 
Group. They are based on a set of principles that have been unanimously endorsed 
by Schools Forum and the Task and Finish Group as providing the best overall 
solution for Leicestershire pupils and to ensure that the next stage of transition to a 
national funding formula leaves schools best placed to respond to the future 
changes. 

 
13. All education providers receive an element of additional funding, school phases an 

types are not individual but elements of an education system meeting the needs of 
pupils aged 2 to 15 and in line with the pupils educated from DSG resources. Whilst 
the Department for Education (DfE) have stated its intention to review the funding 
allocations for both high needs and early years there is no indication of time scale. 
By allocating 3% of the additional funding to early years providers it can be ensured 
that all receive an increase over the current low funded position. 

 
14. The local authority has considered the responses from schools and would like to 

seek the views of Schools Forum in an amendment to the proposals that would be in 
keeping with the fundamental principles but respond to the concerns of secondary 
schools. This would be to: 

 
a) Increase the primary AWPU by 7%, this is unchanged from the consultation 

proposal 
 
b) Increase prior attainment funding by 100%, this is unchanged from the 

consultation proposal 
 
c) Increase secondary AWPU by 2.75%, this is changed from the consultation which 

distributed the remaining funding across both primary and secondary AWPU. 
 
d) Align the budget to the final funding allocation to reflect underlying data changes 

by an adjustment to primary and secondary AWPU, the proposal in the 
consultation was that this should be achieved by amending the general 1.5% 
AWPU increase. 

 
15. This change would however require the funding to be allocated to early years 

providers being increased from £0.73m to £0.93m in order to maintain the principle 
that the increase should be in line with that for secondary schools which would 

43



increase from 3.6% to 4.5%, this level of increase could be accommodated for high 
needs providers within current resources. 

 
16. The consultation proposal resulted in 23 school remaining on MFG, whilst these 

schools will see no cash increase as a result of the proposals neither will they see a 
1.5% reduction in per pupil funding in 2015/16. Should the amendment detailed 
above be adopted then the number of schools in this position would increase to 26. 
 

  
Resource Implications 
16. Resources implications are considered throughout the report. 
 
Equal Opportunity Issues 
17. There are no direct equal opportunity implications, the proposals however will 

increase funding targeted at pupils with low prior attainment 
 
 
Background Papers 
Schools Forum 5 June 2014 – 2015/16 Funding Consultation 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1018&MId=4192&Ver=4 
 
 
Schools Forum 16 June 2014 - 2015/16 School Funding 
Schools Forum 16 June 2014 – 2015/16 Funding Formula 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1018&MId=4118&Ver=4 
 
Officers to Contact 
Jenny Lawrence 
Finance Business Partner – Children and Family Services 
Tel; 0116 305 6401 
Email; jenny.lawrence@leics.gov.uk 
 
 

44



Appendix 1 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S 
 

PROPOSALS FOR 2015/16 SCHOOL FUNDING 

 
1. Leicestershire County will receive an additional £240 per pupil in school funding 

for 2015/16, the background and context are set out in the following document; 
 

This document sets out the process followed by the local authority in defining 
the basis for the allocation of this funding. 
 
The proposed approach to allocate the additional funding received support from 
the Schools Forum at its meeting on 16 June and have been formulated in 
conjunction with the 2015/16 School Funding task and Finish Group consisting 
of a cross section of headteachers, governors, business managers and Schools 
Forum Members from maintained schools and academies across Leicestershire 
 
 

Do you agree with the approach taken by the local authority for the 
distribution of the additional funding? 

Yes 
 

Yes 
 

YES 
 

Yes 
 

Yes we agree with the principles determined by the local authority for the 
distribution of the additional monies. 
 

Yes 
 

The Chair of Governors and Chair of Finance, Pay and Personnel  of xxxx 
Primary Academy Trust in consultation with our Head xxxx agree 
wholeheartedly to the approach. We have based our agreement on points 7 
and 8 in the consultation document (shown below). Furthermore we have 
calculated that the academy will receive in the region of £44,000 additional 
funding should the suggested funding formulae be applied. This would have 
significant positive impact upon the learning environment for pupils, staff and 
support staff within the academy. 
 
 7. Analysis of the 2014/15 Leicestershire school funding formula identified two 

areas where funding levels were out of line with those in similar 
authorities, the level of funding provided to primary schools through the 
Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) was low and that the level of funding 
targeted at low prior attainment was also below that in other authorities. 
The first call on the additional 2015/16 funding is to redress this position. 

 
8. The local authority established a School Funding Task and Finish Group 
consisting of headteachers, governors, members of the Schools Forum and 

45



Appendix 1 

school business managers to challenge the local authorities perspective and 
engage schools in developing the proposals for 2015/16.  The Task and Finish 
Group have concluded that the proposals present the best overall option for all 
educational providers in Leicestershire 
 

I agree with the process. 

 

We note that the LA approach is based upon working towards providing similar 
levels of funding to that of statistical neighbours, and we acknowledge that 
primary AWPUs should be the first priority.  Whilst we recognise cost pressures 
in all phases, we are not convinced of the argument that Early Years provision 
should benefit from the additional funding which was given to support the 
Schools block particularly. 
 

No. 
 
The announcement made by Ministers earlier in the year led all Leicestershire 
Schools to assume they would be getting a £242 per pupil rise. 
 
As an Upper School this would equate to a welcome 5.6% increase in AWPU. 
In reality less than 2% is now proposed for KS4. 
 
Whilst we accept that the Dedicated Schools Grant is allocated in three blocks 
covering Schools, High Needs and Early Years, the announcement did not 
mention as far as we recall, Early Years or High Needs. 
 
As a result we do not agree with the approach being taken by the Local 
Authority for the distribution of additional funding and feel the money should be 
allocated to schools only. Similarly, if the Government had announced 
additional revenue for Early Years and/or High Needs , we would not as a 
school, expect to receive any of the additional funding. 
 

Agree this is difficult and appreciate that school staff have been included in the 
consultation. 
 

No. 
 
Using statistical neighbours to compare funding allocations lacks validity and is 
potentially flawed. Each forum will decide on how much to spend at each key 
stage and many LAs will have spent more money on key stages 1 and 2 in 
order to bring about improvements in outcomes. Given that our key stage 2 
outcomes are broadly comparable with our neighbours it would suggest that we 
are providing good value for money and delivering an efficient service. 
 

No. 
 
The original announcement and the final guidance document (Fairer schools 
funding, Arrangements for 2015 to 2016, July 2014) set a very clear rational for 
the additional funding and very clear recommendations about how it should be 
spent (although the advice is not mandatory). 

46



Appendix 1 

 
We believe that Leicestershire should top up all AWPUs by £240. If necessary, 
the lump sum should be reduced (to the recommended minimum) to fund this. 
 
The benchmarking exercise which has prompted this proposal has chosen to 
look only at the pupil led elements and has ignored the fact that some 
benchmarked authorities have smaller lump sums.  
 
This means that primary schools that already benefit from high lump sum 
amount will benefit disproportionately from this proposal. 
 
If the original allocations AWPU have been wrong historically, this should be 
addressed, but not through this particular process. 

 
 

2. For schools the proposals will deliver: 
 

· An increase of 7% to the primary Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) 

· An increase in the funding targeted at low prior attainment by 100% 
 

These increases will bring the proportion of funding allocated to Leicestershire 
schools in line with that recorded in similar local authorities in 2014/15.  
 

· Increase primary, Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 AWPU by 1.5% (subject 
to any adjustment for underlying school data changes) 

 
All maintained schools and academies receive funding through the AWPU and 
low prior attainment factors. 
 
It is further proposed that early years providers will receive an increase in the 
base rate of funding of 3.6% 
 

Do you agree with the proposed distribution? 

Yes 
 

Yes 
 

I would prefer to see a higher % allocated to AWPU and a lower % to low prior 
attainment.    
 

Yes 
 

Yes we agree with the proposed distribution which recognises the comparative 
shortfalls for Leicestershire Schools. 
 

Yes 
 

Yes we agree with this proposal because it looks to redress the balance of 
funding to Primary AWPU and for prior low attainment. It should be pointed out 
that at present KS3 funding is significantly greater than for KS1/2. The proposal 

47



Appendix 1 

above only closes the gap by approximately 20%. 
 

No.  I do not agree that there should be any differential between the increase in 
the primary and the secondary AWPUs. 
 
I do agree with the proposal to double the low prior attainment factor. 
 

As above, we recognise the LAs approach to distributing the additional funding 
in a manner which will bring us in line with statistical neighbours and may make 
any future transition to a national formula less of a radical change 
 

No. 
 
Whilst acknowledging the need to redress the issue of funding for Primary 
children and those with low prior attainment, we feel the percentage increase to 
Primary Schools compared to Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 is too great (we 
assume the third bullet point ‘Increase in Primary, Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 
4 AWPU by 1.5%’ is a mistake and the Primary AWPU is not increasing by a 
further 1.5% in addition to the 7% increase proposed in bullet point one).   
Assuming my interpretations are correct we feel the difference in the increase 
in AWPU between Primary, Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 should be lower and 
propose for the first bullet point an increase of 5%.  For the third bullet point an 
increase of 3.5%. If the percentages included in the proposals remain as in 
bullet point one and three we disagree fully with the proposals and feel the 
percentage increase should be identical for all Primary, Key Stage 3 and Key 
Stage 4 pupils.  
 
We disagree with bullet point two as additional income has and continues to be 
targeted predominantly to students with low prior attainment, i.e. Pupil Premium 
money and this is already in school budgets. 
 

Feel there is disproportionate amount being allocated to both early years and 
primary.  Understand wanting to be fair with funding, however, feel that 
comparing with statistical neighbours does not take into account local context.  
If there is any balancing of funding it should be in line with moving towards 
national funding as planned for the future. 
 

No, the rationale for such an enormous variation in key stage increases is 
unclear as using statistical neighbours is a dubious model given that we don’t 
know why other LAs have made their decisions. 
 
Funding an increase for key stages 1 and 2 at over four times the rate for 
secondary age funding increase and funding early years by two and half times 
the secondary is unfair and unjust. 
 
The funding should be used to create a fairer funding platform at all key stages 
and to increase one key stage at the expense of another is inappropriate. 
 
The decision to target the funding at low attaining students by doubling the 
amount is again without foundation. In recent times the forum has altered the 

48



Appendix 1 

funding mechanism to provide additional funding to students in areas of 
deprivation. Many of these students already attract Pupil Premium funding 
which has already increased. Given that many of these students have already 
attracted significant increases in funding there is little or no evidence to indicate 
a significant impact on outcomes. Until we see the benefits of the existing 
funding increases I believe that more funding should be allocated to the AWPU. 
A further increase will be the fourth substantial increase affecting many of the 
same students.  
 
If you then look at the total schools budget (taking all funding sources into 
account) you will see a huge differential that is increasing.  
 
There is very little evidence to indicate that all of this additionality is having an 
impact. 
 
I would prefer to see a greater AWPU contribution given across all sectors and 
less targeted funding at particular groups. 
 
Many schools were anticipating a significant increase in their AWPU funding 
and at secondary level this actually amounts to £67 per pupil. Given the 
national headlines and publicity of £240 per pupil this will add a  major financial 
pressure for many schools. 

No.  
 
This money is for statutory aged children, not early years. 
 
The idea of fairer funding is to fairly fund pupils across the country, therefore 
raising the primary and secondary AWPU in line with similar authorities makes 
sense.  However, the extra funding relates to Schools Block only, so should not 
be used to raise allocations for Early Years or High Needs provisions. 
 
The extra funding should be directed at the area it is meant for only. 
Would like to see fairer funding for schools as per the DfE published minimum 
funding levels for 2015-2016, increase in AWPU and a reduction in deprivation 
and lump sum funding.    
KS3 funding, in particular is grossly out of line. 

 
3. All modelling has been completed using October 2013 school census data, final 

school budgets will be based upon October 2014 data and it may be necessary 
to adjust the funding values in order to deliver a balanced budget in 2015/16. It 
is proposed that in this instance that the general increase in AWPU of 1.5% will 
be amended. 

 

Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes 
 

Yes 
 

Yes 
 

49



Appendix 1 

Yes 
 

We agree that any subsequent minor adjustments should be made to the 
AWPU. 
 

Yes 
 

We agree with this proposal in principle, as it accepted that school census data 
changes year on year. We do request however, that any necessary 
amendments required to deliver a balanced budget are communicated in 
advance to all parties affected. 
 

Yes 
 

Yes.  It is acknowledged that other pupil characteristics will vary from census to 
census, and that the first priorities shall be Primary AWPU uplift, and Prior 
Attainment, and that once these costs have been met, then any balance should 
be used to increase AWPUs across the board. 
 

We agree with this proposal. 
 

Yes. 
 

We do not agree with the starting point, however, if the proposal is approved, 
then we would only agree to a change in the AWPU if it was increased. By 
more than 1.5% 

 
4. We would like to capture any other views that you may have on the proposals. 
 

Please detail any general comments you may have on the proposed 
allocation of the additional funding 

This seems fair to me given the criteria the funding is to address. It is 
concerning that we are still very poorly funded compared to other authorities. I 
trust this level of funding will be maintained. 
 

We are pleased with the proposed arrangements, it gives our school a fairer 
allocation. 
 

It is right that LCC is brought into line with similar authorities. 
 
It will be essential to know as soon as possible if these funding rates will remain 
in place in 2016. 
 

None 
 

With respect to each school individual funding calculation detail. Will each 
school receive advance notification of the calculation detail together with the 
funding value? 
 

50



Appendix 1 

I feel strongly that this additional funding should have been utilised at least 
partly to fully compensate schools adversely affected by age-range changes.  
The move to actual NOR funding for 7/12 of the financial year led to a one-off 
financial penalty on schools with falling rolls created by competing schools 
increasing their age range.  Only 80% protection was provided, leaving a 
considerable shortfall for schools  like XXXXXX College. 
 

The issue of Early Years funding is already emerging as a potential topic of 
debate ahead of the general election.  If a decision is made to use some of the 
additional funding to increase Early Years rates at this time, we trust that this 
will be reciprocated in future, should Early Years funding be increased by a 
future govt, and that the value of funding (uplifted for  inflation) which is 
transferred to early years by these proposals is transferred back to schools 
funding in future 
 

 
It is disappointing that the consultation for the proposals and the decision 
making process does not allow sufficient time for adequate reflection and 
discussion. We note that the consultation report by necessity of the timescale 
will not be published in advance of the next school forum and will be handed 
out at the meeting. It is generally accepted practice to have reports 2 weeks 
prior to any meeting and this should have been the case for this meeting 
particularly when such important decisions are being made. 
 
We are pleased to note that Age Range Funding protection remains at 80%, 
without this some schools including ourselves, would have had a deficit which 
would be irretrievable. However we need to draw the Forum’s attention to the 
potential consequences of the Age Range changes, particularly as when 
previous decisions regarding this were made no modelling of the impact on 
individual schools was taken into account. So we believe Schools Forum were 
making decisions without having the detailed information they required. 
 
Even with the protection one school will lose over 3 years £1.8million that it 
would have normally received through lagged funding. This clearly is 
unacceptable as it will have an adverse effect on the quality of education 
provided for the young people at the school.  
 
It is ironic that this loss occurs after the majority of schools in the county are 
implementing the recommendation from the County Council that schools 
change their age range to become 11-16 or 11-18 establishments. This was 
also supported by the Schools Minister and DfE as it was envisaged the 
standards of achievement for young people at 16 would improve as a result - 
something we all passionately desire!  Little did we know that this would result 
in some schools educating young people without receiving any revenue to do 
so - surely this cannot be right?  
 
It would appear that each of the three High Schools that first changed their age 
range to 11-16 benefited enormously from the EFA who awarded additional 
finances to ensure the change in age range did not disadvantage any student 
being educated in Leicestershire. 

51



Appendix 1 

 
We feel strongly that the lagged funding system should have remained and that 
either the EFA or LA should have continued to provide start-up funds to schools 
gaining pupils through Age Range changes, rather than penalising some 
schools by removing lagged funding. Funding which has been unfairly taken 
from existing students already in year 10 at Upper schools that would have 
been entitled to the full funding (not 80%) at year 11. 
 
There is no doubt that if this funding regime does not change and protection 
funds are not found for schools that ‘lose out’ under Age Range reform then it 
will have significant consequences and inconsistencies on the quality of 
education delivered in any given area. In addition, with 80% protection some 
schools (including ours) will have no alternative but to set a deficit budget and 
the Schools Forum members need to be aware of this (please note this is not a 
threat it is just reality and would be unavoidable). 
 
Both the LA and EFA have advocated Age Range changes across the County, 
yet neither appear to have given sufficient thought as to how this will be 
financed. 
 
In light of this I feel that one of the proposals for 2015/16 which should have 
been included in this paper for Schools Forum to consider should have been to 
suggest redressing the significant loss of income some schools are facing as a 
result of age range change. I firmly believe some of the additional monies 
should have been used to address the massive imbalance which has been 
experienced by those schools. This would have allowed all schools who are 
changing their age range either from 14-16 to 11-16 or 14-18 to 11-18 to have 
started these exciting ventures on an equal footing. As mentioned earlier for a 
school to receive £1.8m less over three years than it would have under lagged 
funding cannot be deemed fair and I feel that the Schools Forum did not look at 
this issue with the seriousness that it deserved in recent times.  
 

Given that increased numbers of students with additional needs are joining or 
engaged with mainstream provision, why are funds being reallocated to special 
schools from the contingency. Special schools are already funded at an 
exceptionally high base level, so why is this additional funding necessary? 
 
I have spoken to special school heads and in several cases they are happy with 
their funding allocation. 
 

This extra funding shouldn’t be used for Early Years or High Needs funding 
increases.  These areas are scheduled for a review, and LA should wait for the 
outcomes of these reviews before allocating funding. 
 
In moving towards fairer schools funding, the Government has produced 
minimum funding levels for 2015-16, and the LA should attempt to replicate 
these as closely as possible.  Would this be attainable if Early Years & High 
Needs increases were removed from the proposal?  
 

 

52



Appendix 1 

The following email responses are presented for completeness, the consultation 
document clearly stated that email and verbal responses would not be considered as 
a formal response. 
 

Email Responses in addition to the Consultation Pro-Forma 
 

To whom it may concern, I support the proposal to increase the primary awpu 
by 7%. If there is somewhere else I need to respond please let me know.  
 

I have read the school funding consultation (for the first time) and don't profess 

to understand it completely yet.  I have also discussed it (again very briefly) 

with my Business Manager.    

Firstly let me say that I fully appreciate this is an extremely complex issue and I 

am grateful for the consultation that has taken place during the summer and the 

work that has been put into this document.  I also appreciate that proposals 

have been put forward based on the most noble of intentions.  

Having said that, the figure of £240 per pupil, which was quoted when the extra 

money was devolved to Leicestershire and is, indeed, mentioned in the very 

first paragraph of this consultation, is greatly reduced by page 4 of the 

document where, if my understanding is correct, it states that key stage 3 pupils 

will receive an extra £53.56 and key stage 4 pupils an extra £63.87.  On the 

same page it states that the primary allocation per pupil (AWPU) is £216.45.  

Once again, I reiterate that I have read and think I understand the reasons for 

this large discrepancy.  However, I do feel it is too large and ask that the AWPU 

allocation is reconsidered to arrive at a fairer settlement for secondary schools.  

As I have said, after a first reading of the document, I do not profess to 

understand all the complexities but in general terms, if my first impression is 

correct, secondary schools with low levels of deprivation will be disadvantaged 

by this proposal and I would ask that the  School Forum considers further ways 

redress this inequality.  The AWPU funding would seem to be the easiest 

solution.    

I know this will seem like we are robbing Peter to pay Paul but the discrepancy 

in funding needs to be addressed. 

 

In principle, the Governing Body agrees to the proposals outlined for 2015/16 

funding. 

Complete agreement with proposals put to Funding Forum on 5 th Sept ( and 

congratulations to working party) Good selection of principles on which 

proposals founded - sound number crunching to reach final proposals. Only blip 

is that this is a one year only proposal - but this should not prevent us from 

53



Appendix 1 

agreeing these proposals 

I would like to state that we would make the following points in response to the 

consultation document: 

· We do not understand the decision behind the split-level funding to 
primary and secondary schools, without information provided on primary 
and secondary funding across Leicestershire and for statistical 
neighbours. This data is not available in the consultation document and 
we do not feel well informed about this. We need this information to 
understand why secondary schools in Leicestershire will receive less 
fairer funding uplift than primary schools and less than other secondary 
schools in LAs, also currently unfairly funded. How can we be reassured 
that the current Leicestershire funding system is unfair and that 
Leicestershire is wrong and not statistical neighbours, without this 
information? 

· Why was the decision to change the funding system brought in at this 
time by the LA. Why was the system not changed previously if there are 
strong feelings that it is unfair? Why wait until this point, when there is 
very little time to make decisions that have far-reaching effects. The two 
matters should not be confused 

· On this basis, the consultation requires the provision of further 
information and also opportunities to be briefed/meet, alongside a longer 
consultation period than 17 days 

· We cannot understand the weighting being proposed to high needs 
pupils above other pupils, considering the finance currently already given 
to high needs pupils through the pupil premium and the catch-up 
funding. This would be money better shared amongst non high need 
pupils to retain equality for all 

 

Consequently, based upon these views and the lack of pertinent information, as 

well as not having enough time for briefing and discussion, we cannot agree to 

the proposals made. 

 

Having read the consultation document and rationale behind the proposal, we 

would like to make the following comments;- 

§ There is a disproportionate amount of funding that will be allocated to 
Early Years and Primary providers in comparison to the amount 
allocated to KS3 and 4 students. Recent funding has been targeted at 
Early Years provision and, at the Secondary end, we have felt no impact 
of this.  

§ Leicestershire Upper Schools, such as ourselves, have waited in hope 
for the fairer funding to have an impact on deficit budgets, caused by the 
poor funding of Leicestershire. Suddenly, the hope of a levelling of 
students funding in comparison with other counties appears to have 
been taken away from us. Whilst understanding that there are no 

54



Appendix 1 

sureties, we were hoping that this additional funding would address 
issues which have gradually decreased our budget and our ability to 
raise standards.   

§ Whilst we can understand the need to compare situations in similar 
Authorities, the variables between Authorities are so great that a true 
comparison would be difficult to make. This was an ideal opportunity for 
Leicestershire to review historical funding formulas in order to achieve 
equity amongst its own county schools.  

§ Leicestershire supports age range change and has used much of its 
resources to support whole areas with such age range change (Melton , 
Loughborough.) It is now essential that those areas and schools who are 
now trying to accomplish those changes, for the good of the learners, 
receive the same level of support, in order to do so successfully.  

§ Whilst it is not part of the consultation, we were surprised to learn that all 
schools receive the same lump sum small school protection of £150k 
regardless of NOR. This cannot possibly be fair and should, in future 
funding formula, be related to students numbers.  

 

I suspect I may be too late as I have been away but: 

As a Governor for many years I have struggled to understand why in 
Leicestershire we are so poorly funded compared to other Counties. I thought 
we were supposed to carry out the same function, teaching and Learning!! If we 
moved The xxxxx less than a mile due south we would be in a much better 
financial position! I have written to the new Minister as being a Leicestershire 
MP, asking why this unfair funding has been allowed to continue for so long 
and apparently is going to continue. 

Why do young people, Early Years, Primary providers warrant a greater finance 
share, surely older pupils require  more expensive resources! 

 

Response to 2015/16 School Funding Consultation 

Whilst I understand the rationale behind the proposals I have to express my 

severe misgivings and disappointment.  There seems to be merely a desire to 

bring funding in line with ‘statistical neighbours’ rather than analyse the issues 

in educational provision in Leicestershire and respond to these.  I would argue 

that if the solution is to be anything other than to follow the £240 extra per pupil 

in every school (that is the government headline), then there must be 

educational reasons for a difference.  Sadly, I cannot see any educational 

arguments made in the document or any reference as to how outcomes will be 

raised and to what level as a result of the proposals.   

According to OFSTED and the LA, the vast majority of Leicestershire schools 

are good or better and this proportion is increasing.  Seemingly, Leicestershire 

is doing well.  Yet this is not borne out in the outcomes of young people where 

55



Appendix 1 

iT most matters at KS4 GCSE.  Leicestershire schools have produced lower 

than national average GCSE outcomes for the last two years at least, and the 

picture appears to be deteriorating.  This is also echoed by OFSTED, outcomes 

where a frighteningly low proportion of schools delivering GCSE’s and A level 

qualifications are rated ‘Good’ or better.  Either the Local Authority believes that 

these schools are uniformly staffed with below average teachers and below 

average leaders or there must be other factors at work.  As there is no dialogue 

about the former hypothesis at the LA then we must assume the latter. 

In this time of huge transition from split secondary system to an ‘all through’ 

one, there is an immense threat to outcomes for young people.  The LA’s 

decision on transport has affected secondaries far more than primaries.  It is 

upper schools that are affected by age range change and it is these schools 

that face the prospect of huge budget cuts.  I would agree that in this context 

any other solution (other than £240 per pupil in every school) needs at least to 

be argued on an educational basis.  We only have to look across the border 

into Leicester City to see the impact that the LA’s funding of secondaries can 

have.  Here significant additional resources were made available with clear 

expectations and highly aspirational targets.  The results speak loudly for 

themselves.  Surely we can show similar levels of wisdom in Leicestershire.  

I look forward to your response to the points I have raised. 

 

 

56


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 June 2014 and 5 September 2014 (previously circulated) and matters arising.
	Minutes of an additional meeting held on Friday 5 September 2014

	5 Oakfield Update
	6 2013/14 School Balances
	2013-14 School Balances - Appendix 1

	7 Personal Budgets
	8 2015/16 School Funding
	Appendix 1 - Consultation Responses


